
BOARD’S REPORT

To the Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 4th Integrated Report (prepared as per the framework laid down by the International Integrated 
Reporting Council) and the 31st Annual Accounts on the business and operations of Tata Metaliks Limited (‘TML’ or ‘Company’) for the 
Financial Year (FY) ended March 31, 2021.

Financial Results

(` crore)

Particulars Financial Year
2020-21

Financial Year
2019-20

Revenue from operations 1,916.66 2,050.63
Total expenditure before finance cost, depreciation 1,527.43 1,766.02
Operating Profit 389.23 284.61
Add: Other Income 8.12 15.81
Profit before finance cost, depreciation and taxes 397.35 300.42
Less: Finance costs 23.60 33.14
Profit before depreciation and taxes 373.75 267.28
Less: Depreciation and amortization expenses 67.13 65.06
Profit before taxes 306.62 202.22
Less: Tax expenses 86.00 35.42
(A) Profit after tax - from continuing operations 220.62 166.80
(B) Loss after tax - from discontinued operations (0.81) (0.84)
(c) Profit for the Year (A+B) 219.81 165.96
(D) Other comprehensive income net of tax (0.30) (1.78)
(E) Total comprehensive income for the year (C+D) 219.51 164.18
Retained Earnings: Balance brought forward from the previous year 487.52 335.20
Add: profit for the period 219.81 165.96
Add: Other Comprehensive Income recognised in Retained Earnings (0.30) (1.78)
Add: Other movements within equity - -
Balance 707.03 499.37
Which the Directors have apportioned as under to:  
(i) Dividend on Ordinary Shares 7.02 9.83
(ii) Tax on Dividend - 2.02
Total appropriations  - -
Retained Earnings: Balance to be carried forward 700.01 487.52

The novel corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic has had an unprecedented impact on business and on the human race. The country’s economic curve saw a steep 
decline particularly in the April – June 2020 quarter (Q1). The production of Pig Iron (PI) and Ductile Iron Pipes (DIP) at the plant in Kharagpur, West Bengal was 
suspended in the last week of March 2020 post the country wide lockdown announced by the Government of India. Production commenced in phases from 
mid-May with gradual recovery from Q2 onwards and a good pick-up in demand later in the fiscal year particularly in Q4.

In view of the above, the operational and financial performance of the Company has been adversely impacted during Q1 of FY 2020-21. But an excellent 
operational performance coupled with a buoyancy in steel and commodity prices worldwide helped the Company achieve its best ever profitability 
figures in FY2020-21.

46



INTEGRATED REPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS STATUTORY REPORTS

01-44 98-15445-97

Dividend Distribution Policy
In terms of Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), the Board of Directors of 
the Company (the ‘Board’) formulated and adopted a Dividend 
Distribution Policy which is available on our website at https://www.
tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/dividend-distribution-
policy.pdf 

Dividend
The Board has recommended a dividend of ₹4/- per Equity Share on 
3,15,77,500 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each for FY 2020-21 (previous year 
₹2.50 per equity share on 2,80,85,000 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each). 

The dividend pay-out is in accordance with the Company’s efforts 
to pay sustainable dividend keeping in mind the Long Term Growth 
Plans of the Company and enhancing stakeholder value.

The dividend on equity shares is subject to the approval of the 
Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) scheduled 
to be held on Monday, August 02, 2021 and will be paid on and from 
Friday, August 06, 2021.

The dividend, if approved, would result in a cash outflow of ₹1,263.10 
lakhs. The total dividend outgo works out to 5.75% (FY 2019-20: 
4.23%) of the net profit of the financial results. 

Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income is taxable in the 
hands of the shareholders effective April 1, 2020 and the Company is 
required to deduct tax at source from dividend paid to the Members 
at prescribed rates as per the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will 
remain closed from July 24, 2021 to August 02, 2021 (both days 
inclusive) for the purpose of payment of the dividend for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 and the AGM.

Transfer to Reserves
The Board has decided to retain the entire amount of profit for 
FY 2020-21 in the statement of profit and loss and no amount is 
proposed to be transferred to the general reserves.

Capex and Liquidity
During the year under review, the Company incurred capital 
expenditure of `144 Crore, which has been funded through internal 
accruals. Though the liquidity position did get affected during Q1 
FY 2020-21 due to outbreak of COVID-19, the Company successfully 
managed its liquidity situation and recovered strongly from Q2; 
strong cashflows in H2 helped the Company end the year with cash 
surplus with undrawn lines of both fund-based and non-fund based 
limits sanctioned by banks.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, in compliance with 
Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI Listing Regulations, forms an integral part 
of this report and is annexed herewith as Annexure A.

Integrated Report
In continuation with our commitment to stakeholders, the 
Company continues to follow the <IR> framework developed by the 
International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC).

The governance-based reporting framework of the Integrated Report 
seeks to comprehensively present to its stakeholders, financial 
and non-financial measures being undertaken to create long-term 
sustainable value by reaching out to various stakeholders. <IR> not 
only focuses on integrated thinking for decision-making but also 
aims to improve the quality of information, enhance accountability 
and promote a transparent approach to corporate reporting. 
The adoption of integrated reporting reflects our passion and 
commitment towards a cohesive value creation process.

Accordingly, your Directors present the 4th Integrated Report of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 which 
highlights the measures taken by the Company that contribute to 
long-term sustainability and value creation for all stakeholders.

Operations and Performance
Financial & Operational Performance
FY2020-21 has been a year of unprecedented challenges and 
uncertainties. However, the Company showed remarkable resilience 
and came up with one of the best ever operational performances and 
has recorded it’s highest-ever EBITDA of `397 crore (FY 2019-20: `300 
crore). The Company also achieved a record Profit Before Tax (PBT) of 
`307 crore as compared to `202 crore in FY2019-20.

The huge jump in EBITDA margins and profits despite a near wash 
out in Q1 due to COVID-19 is primarily attributable to significantly 
improved operational efficiencies and cost improvement on the 
upstream side, big jump in market prices for PI and encouraging 
performance of DIP business during the latter part of the year. The 
sales volume of ductile iron pipes (DIP) stood at 194 kilo tonnes (Kt) 
as against 218Kt in the previous year while that of pig iron was 287Kt 
compared to 314Kt in FY20. The lower sales volume compared to 
previous year was mainly due to the stoppage of despatches in most 
part of Q1 as a consequence of nationwide lockdown announced by 
the Government.

State of Company’s affairs
Pig Iron (PI)
During the year under review, the Company has recorded its best 
ever operational figures for the Blast Furnace operations in terms of 
availability, fuel rates, coal injection and yields. A major reduction in 
fuel rate was achieved owing to several initiatives including higher 
availability, fewer interruptions in blast furnace operations, increased 
injection of oxygen, and other process improvements brought in.

The Pulverised Coal Injection (PCI) plant, which was commissioned in 
FY 2018-19, yielded great results this year with 65-70% improvement 
in coal injection rates brought about due to higher usage of oxygen, 
stable furnace operations, etc. 
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Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP)
The DIP business of the Company recorded a reduction of 24% in 
finished pipe production at 187 kt compared to 232Kt in FY 2019-
20. This is mainly due to reduced number of days available for 
production owing to the lockdown in early part of the year; the DIP 
business also got impacted at the customer end due to the pandemic 
with limited fund flows from the Government and project sites 
getting intermittently affected due to covid infections. However, the 
DIP business rebounded strongly in Q4 with major announcements 
of investments by the Government on Jal Jeevan Mission. Robust 
demand of DIP was reflected in Company’s order books reaching a 
level of 16 to 18 months in Q4 compared to the usual 9 to 12 months. 

COVID-19 Response
The Company began taking precautionary measures a week before 
the lockdown was announced on March 23, 2020. Employees were 
asked to work from home (WFH) to reduce overall footfall. At Plant, 
thermal screening and medical screening for all the employees, 
contract labour and visitors were initiated. A COVID-19 awareness 
campaign was also initiated for the workforce through various 
digital communication channels. A COVID-19 Apex meeting chaired 
by the Managing Director was held daily to review the lockdown 
situation to take necessary actions. A cross-functional COVID-19 
Task Force was constituted that developed & deployed SOPs on the 
shop floor to ensure safety of the employees. Most employees in 
the plant were put on Pod or roster system; several of them were 
asked to Work from Home which along with other initiatives such as 
staggered sitting arrangement in offices, effective sanitization plan, 
etc helped in minimizing exposure of employees and keeping them 
safe. The company also tied-up with medical labs/centres for regular 
COVID-19 testing of employees and visitors in the plant. All visitors, 
new employees and employees returning from leave were tested and 
allowed to enter the plant only if they were declared covid negative. 
The Company also put in place a regular testing schedule for its 
employees especially the front line employees such as those of its 
Medical unit, Security, Canteen, etc. As on March 31, 2021, more than 
10,000 COVID-19 tests were conducted by the Company of which 354 
positive cases were found. There were 31 hospitalization cases with 
one unfortunate demise.

In line with its focus on digital and innovation, various contactless 
and digital solutions were implemented. An Artificial Intelligence 
(AI) based application along with alarm system was developed 
to monitor social distancing and face mask violations. For safety 
leadership capability building, in-house online training modules 
were developed and successfully implemented. The Company 
also ensured workforce engagement through virtual meetings, 
e-workshops, e-learning modules, etc. This not only helped in 
increasing connect with employees & building their morale but also 
reduce anxiety and mental stress. The Company not only provided 
medical assistance, but also arranged special medical insurance 
against COVID-19 for its employees and provided special covid leave 
for employees who were infected with COVID-19 or advised home 
quarantine due to contact tracing at work place. 

The Company in early-April’20 allocated a COVID-19 fund to provide 
immediate relief to the vulnerable communities including daily 
wage workers who were badly impacted due to the lockdown. The 
Company’s employees under the guidance of the Plant Leadership 

reached out to the affected communities in the area around the plant 
and provided dry ration and other necessities including medicines. 
The Company also contributed `100 Lakhs to West Bengal State 
Disaster Management Authority.

Post-lockdown, operations continued with strict adherence to SOPs 
and extensive testing for all employees working in the plant at 
regular intervals based on contact tracing SOP. Several processes 
such as third party inspection of finished products, technical services 
to customers etc. have been carried out virtually to the extent 
practical to avoid visitors at plant.

Key Developments
Change in capital structure 
During the year under review, the Company issued and allotted 
34,92,500 Equity Shares pursuant to conversion of Warrants issued 
to the Promoter, i.e. Tata Steel Limited at a price of ₹642 per Warrant, 
by subscribing to one equity share per Warrant of face value of 
₹10 each, aggregating to ₹224,21,85,000/- (of which 25% was paid 
on application and balance amount of ₹168,16,38,750/- paid on 
September 25, 2020, towards conversion of Warrants to Equity 
Shares). As a result, the percentage holding of Tata Steel Limited has 
increased from 55.06% to 60.03%.

Consequently, the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company 
stands increased to ₹31,57,75,000 divided into 3,15,77,500 Equity 
Shares of ₹10/- each as on the close of the Financial Year 2020-21.
There was no other change in the capital structure of the Company.

Scheme of Amalgamation of Tata Metaliks Limited with Tata 
Steel Long Products Limited
During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company, 
at its meeting held on November 13, 2020, approved a scheme of 
amalgamation of Tata Metaliks Limited into and with Tata Steel Long 
Products Limited. The necessary statutory submissions were made 
to the Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE). The Company will follow due regulatory 
procedure for approvals and implementation of the Scheme.

Credit Ratings
The Company enjoys a sound reputation for its prudent financial 
management and its ability to meet financial obligations. The credit 
rating of your Company for long-term stands at [ICRA] AA- and short- 
term facilities stands at [ICRA] A1+. Details are provided in Corporate 
Governance Report.

Sustainability
The core values of the Tata Group remain integral to the Company’s 
sustainability initiatives to achieve positive value creation across 
stakeholders. This is ensured through a broad spectrum of focused 
interventions in areas of environment management, water 
sustainability, carbon reduction, use of alternate fuel and community 
development. Our strategy of linking our initiatives and priorities 
with United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (UNSDGs) 
is calibrated by our sense of purpose to serve our stakeholders. 
Various initiatives taken in last few years have not only improved 
our Environment-Social-Governance (ESG) performance but also 
improved the lives of the focused communities. During FY 2020-21 
we also conducted an internal benchmarking study of ESG practices 
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to acknowledge and adopt the best practices and lay our roadmap 
for subsequent years.

These initiatives also include a holistic framework of focused 
interventions to attain ‘water positive’ status by FY 2024-25. 
Major interventions undertaken by the Company include local 
community development in areas of education and essential 
amenities, operating a Skill Development Centre and assisting the 
local community during COVID-19 pandemic, to name a few. During 
the year, the Board has also approved a multi-year “TML 300 schools 
project” to transform access to education of children in the nearby 
villages in 2 blocks around the plant thereby making the area child 
labour free.

Additionally, the Company also works on creating awareness on 
sustainability, sharing best practices and incorporating valuable 
sustainability initiatives on various materiality issues which can have 
a positive impact on all stakeholders in the value chain.

Safety and Health
The Company remains committed to its objective of achieving 
Zero harm through a set of well thought out strategies that include 
Contractor Management Safety, Process safety, Risk based thinking 
and transforming the mindset of employees to enhance behavioral 
safety. 

Before resuming production in mid-May 2020 after the lockdown, 
several safety initiatives were undertaken such as - Pre-start up 
Safety Review, Mock drill to check the preparedness and safe 
functioning of key assets, etc. A COVID-19 Task Force comprising 
Cross-functional team members was also constituted that developed 
a robust COVID-19 protocol for resumption of Plant operations 
and the same was subsequently assessed and reviewed by an 
Independent Inspection agency . The Company also introduced 
several COVID-19 preventive measures such as Pod & roster system 
and work from home for employees to curtail the spread of COVID-19 
infection amongst the workforce. It also put in place an elaborate 
system of testing and contact tracing the employees inside the plant 
for covid with the objective of early detection and treatment. This 
paid rich dividends as the operations of the plant could be continued 
without much disruption throughout the year despite COVID-19 wave 
peaking in September 2020.

In order to demonstrate the commitment of the Top Management 
towards the importance of safety, the Senior Leadership Team 
continued to actively engage in Line walks on the shop floor; this 
along with Special Rewards & Recognition for employees displaying 
the right behaviour and taking initiatives on Safety have helped 
promote safety culture at the shop floor. Efforts towards Hazard 
Identification and Risk Assessment (HIRA) in new recalibrated HIRA 
matrix and initiation of Process Safety Risk Management Process 
in critical processes are helping develop a Risk based approach to 
Safety which will give a thrust to our goal of Zero harm. Initiatives 
were also taken to enhance competency of the service providers 
through “Contractor Safety Management System”. This includes 
specific training imparted to Safety Supervisors of service providers 
in association with JN Tata Vocational Training Institute (JNTVTI).

As part of our Digital Transformation Journey, several initiatives 
including deployment of Robotics, use of AI based system and Virtual 
Reality (VR) based training are being deployed to reduce Employee-

Machine interface and improve safety in the workplace. The new DI 
pipe plant will not only have a high degree of automation but will 
also have several robots. This will greatly improve safety besides 
enhancing productivity and quality of operations.

Environment & Climate Change
The Company continued its journey towards minimizing 
environmental impact of its operations. In line with the Tata Group 
Core values, concern for environment under our strategic business 
pillar of ‘Responsible Corporate Citizenship’ is deeply integrated 
with the Company’s vision & strategy. The manufacturing plant at 
Kharagpur which is ISO 14001, ISO 450001 and SA 8000 certified 
continues its journey of operational excellence in harmony with its 
environment based on the principles of 3 Rs Reduce, Recycle and 
Reuse. The Company strives to create benchmarks in the industry 
for sustainable business practices with its focus on air quality, 
efficiency in usage of materials, water & energy and recycling waste. 
A comprehensive 18 months air pollution study was carried out in 
the plant through National Environment Engineering & Research 
Institute (NEERI) for further improving the air quality index in and 
around the plant. Actions on NEERI’s interim recommendations are 
under implementation while their final report is awaited. Our drive 
towards renewable energy is reflected in setting up a 1 MWp Solar 
power plant and usage of EVs (electric vehicles) inside the plant. The 
in-house ESG benchmarking study has also helped to get meaningful 
insights and recalibrate the interventions. 

Climate change is one of the most pressing issues the world faces 
today and the Company recognizes its obligation to work towards 
mitigation of climate change related risks and strives to address 
the challenges of transitioning to lower carbon regime. During the 
year under review, the Board reviewed and adopted a long term 
decarbonisation strategy to achieve its long term goal of becoming 
carbon neutral in line with United Nations Sustainable Development 
Goals (UNSDGs) and Science Based Target initiatives (SBTi).

Customer Relationship
The Company’s marketing strategy is built around the planks of 
developing deep customer engagement, differentiated offerings 
and leveraging digital to improve the customer experience journey. 
During the year, the Company used virtual platforms to engage 
with customers and also offered technical services including 
technical knowledge sharing sessions with both domestic and 
exports customers. Several customer webinars and interactions with 
channel partners were held during the year. Restructuring of the 
PI distribution channels in key markets began to show results with 
improved customer understanding and intimacy. The Company also 
successfully converted its PI sales into cash business which has had a 
significant impact on the working capital management.

Regular usage of data analytics tools such as pricing analytics has 
helped the Company in sharpening its pricing & improving revenue 
generation in the market. The Company initiated the deployment of 
a leading Customer Relationship Management (CRM) platform which 
along with its integration with the Enterprise Resource Planning 
platform, SAP HANA, will yield significant benefits through improved 
visualization & data analytics and enhanced customer experience. 
This platform will also incorporate the Customer Complaint 
Management process which will help in faster resolution of 
complaints and better customer satisfaction. The Company continues 
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to promote its Tata eFee and Tata Ductura as premium brands which 
offers value to its customers.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) initiatives of the Company 
is embodied in its value chain and aligned with the core purpose of 
the Tata Group. The Company is committed to improve the quality 
of life of its communities through long-term value creation for all its 
Stakeholders.

In addition to the response to COVID-19 reported earlier, the 
Company continued with its focused interventions in the areas of 
Education and Essential amenities which include projects in the 
areas of health, sanitation, water conservation & sustainability. 
Further, the Company also engaged with the community to develop 
Entrepreneurs through formation of self-help groups in partnerships 
with other organisations such as NABARD. The Company has 
partnered with Tata Strive to impart quality training at its Skill 
Development Centre with the objective of making the students 
employable. 

The CSR activities are carried out through ‘Sadbhavna Trust’. In terms 
of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there 
under, brief outline of the CSR policy and the prescribed details are 
part of the Annual Report on CSR activities annexed to this report as 
Annexure B. The CSR Policy adopted by the Company can be viewed 
at https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/Corporate-
Social-Responsibility-Accountability-Policy.pdf. For other details, 
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of 
this report.

During the year, the Company has launched a unique Education 
initiative called “ TML 300 Schools project” which aims to ensure 
over a 5 year period that all children in the age group of 5-15 years 
in the defined area covering two blocks near the Plant are provided 
quality education and the area becomes child labour free. The water 
sustainability project, launched last year, targets the nearby 25 
villages by building ponds, nullahs and other water conservation 
and recharging structures. This is in line with the objective of making 
water available to the community and ensuring that the Company 
becomes ‘water positive’ by FY 2024-25. These two ambitious 5 year 
projects are expected to create a significant positive impact on the 
community near the Plant.

We are also happy to report that despite COVID-19 constraints, the 
employees clocked 4,289 Employee Volunteering (EV) Hours. During 
the year under review, a sum of `422.40 lakh was contributed to the 
Sadbhavna Trust for CSR and Affirmative Action initiatives against the 
minimum statutory requirement of `422.40 lakh for the year under 
review. 

Corporate Governance
Your Company remains committed to raise the bar in adopting and 
adhering to transparent and ethical corporate governance practices. 
The Company’s approach to Corporate Governance extends across 
its value chain to create long term value for its stakeholders. The 
practices reflect the Group values and ethos, organization culture, 
polices and our relationship with various stakeholders. As a 
responsible organization, we ensure timely disclosures to provide 

accurate information regarding the operations and performance, 
leadership, and governance of the Company for our stakeholders at 
large.

In line with the SEBI Listing Regulations, Corporate Governance 
Report along with the Certificate from a Practicing Company 
Secretary, certifying compliance with conditions of Corporate 
Governance, is annexed to this report as Annexure C.

Meetings of Board and Committees of Board
The Board of Directors met 8 (eight) times during the year. The 
intervening gap between 2 (two) consecutive meetings was well 
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Committees of the Board 
usually meet prior to the Board meeting or whenever the need arises 
for transacting their respective businesses. Details of composition, 
meetings held and attendance at such meetings of the Board and its 
Committees are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

Selection of New Directors and Board Membership Criteria 
and Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees
The Company has a well-defined policy for appointment of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other employees including their 
remuneration. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
functions in consultation with the Board and follows the guidelines 
of this policy in letter and spirit while selecting candidate(s) for 
appointment of Director(s) and / or KMP(s). The NRC recommends 
suitable candidates to the Board, based on their qualifications, 
positive attributes and experiences for Board Membership. The 
salient features of the Policy are:

• It acts as a guideline for matters relating to appointment and re-
appointment of Directors

• It contains guidelines for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes of Directors, and independence of a Director

• It lays down the criteria for Board Membership 

• It sets out the approach of the Company on Board diversity 

• It lays down the criteria for determining independence of a 
Director, in case of appointment of an Independent Director

The Policy is available on our website at https://www.tatametaliks.
com/static-files/pdf/policies/TML-NRC-policy.pdf

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors
In compliance with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
your Company facilitates various programmes/ awareness sessions 
to familiarise Independent Directors with respect to the nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates, business model the roles, 
rights and responsibilities of Independent Directors etc. 

Details of the familiarization programmes for the Independent 
Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, annexed 
herewith, and the policy as adopted by your Company is also 
available on our website at https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/
pdf/policies/policy-prog-director.pdf

During the year under review, no new Independent Directors were 
inducted to the Board.
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Board Evaluation
The Board evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning, that of the 
Committees and of individual Directors, pursuant to the provisions of 
the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Board sought the feedback of Directors on various parameters 
including:

• Degree of fulfillment of responsibilities towards key stakeholders 
(by way of monitoring corporate governance practices, 
participation in the long term strategic planning, etc.);

• Structure, composition and role clarity of the Board and 
Committees;

• Extent of co-ordination and cohesiveness between the Board 
and its Committees;

• Effectiveness of the deliberations and process management;

• Board/Committee culture and dynamics; and

• Quality of relationship between Board Members and the 
Management.

The Chairman of the Board and Chairman of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (NRC) sought one-on-one feedback 
from all Directors. The feedback sessions were conducted to obtain 
inputs on, inter-alia, the effectiveness of the Board and its various 
Committees. The above criteria are based on the Guidance Note on 
Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India on January 5, 2017.

Additionally, the evaluation process compared the evaluation reports 
of earlier years and reviewed the areas where improvements have 
been made and the areas where further improvement is desired.

The Independent Directors had their meeting on March 15, 2021 
and reviewed, inter-alia, the performance of the Non-Independent 
Directors and the Board as a whole including the Chairman of the 
Board. The feedback of the Independent Directors was shared with 
the NRC.

The NRC reviewed the performance of the individual Directors 
and the Board as a whole. In the Board meeting that followed the 
meeting of the Independent Directors and the meeting of NRC, the 
performance of the Board, its committees, and individual Directors 
was discussed.

The evaluation process found the overall performance of the 
Board satisfactory in working cohesively as a team and guiding the 
Company to attain its growth vision. The Board also appreciated 
and bestowed full confidence in the Chairman and the Management 
in guiding the Company through various challenges to be one 
of the best performing companies amongst the Tata Steel group 
companies. This was also reflected in your Company being declared 
the “Industry Leader” by the Tata Business Excellence Group in its 
Business Excellence Model assessment in FY’21, something achieved 
by only a handful of Tata Group companies.

Remuneration Policy for the Board and other Employees
Based on the recommendations of the NRC, the Board has approved 
the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

(‘KMPs’) and all other employees of the Company. The policy aims to 
ensure that the level and composition of remuneration for Directors, 
KMPs and other employees is reasonable and aligned to market 
to attract, retain and motivate them. The remuneration involves a 
balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and long-
term objectives of your Company.

The salient features of the Policy are:

• It lays down the parameters based on which payment of 
remuneration (including sitting fees and remuneration) should 
be made to Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors.

• It lays down the parameters based on which remuneration 
(including fixed salary, benefits and perquisites, bonus / 
performance linked incentive, commission, retirement benefits) 
should be given to whole-time directors, KMPs, and employees.

• It lays down the parameters for remuneration payable to 
Directors for services rendered in other capacity.

During the year under review, there has been no change in the 
Policy. The said policy is available on our website at https://www.
tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/TML-NRC-policy.pdf.

Particulars of Employees
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required 
under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 are annexed to this Report as Annexure D. In terms of the 
provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and (3) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement containing names and other 
related particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of 
the limits set out in the said Rules forms part of this report.

Directors
Re-appointment of Director retiring by rotation
In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with Article 
110 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Sanjiv Paul 
(DIN:00086974), NED, will retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and is 
eligible for re-appointment.

The necessary resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Paul forms part 
of the Notice convening the AGM. The Board recommends and seeks 
your support in confirming re-appointment of Mr. Paul. The profile 
and particulars of experience, attributes and functional expertise that 
qualify him for Board Membership are duly disclosed in the Notice 
convening the AGM.

Independent Directors’ Declaration
The Company has received the necessary declaration from each 
Independent Director (IDs) in accordance with Section 149(7) of the 
Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
that he/she meets the criteria of independence as laid out in 
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations.

In the opinion of the Board, as per the confirmations received from 
the IDs, there has been no change in the circumstances which may 
affect their status as IDs of the Company and the Board is satisfied 
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of the integrity, expertise, and experience (including proficiency 
in terms of Section 150(1) of the Act) of all IDs on the Board. 
Further, in terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, IDs of the Company have included their names in the data 
bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute 
of Corporate Affairs.

Key Managerial Personnel
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Act, Mr. Sandeep Kumar, Managing 
Director, Mr. Subhra Sengupta, Chief Financial Officer, and Mr. Sankar 
Bhattacharya, Chief – Corporate Governance & Company Secretary 
were designated as Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of your 
Company as on March 31, 2021.

There has been 1 (one) change in the office of KMPs since the close of 
the financial year and the date of this report. Mr. Sankar Bhattacharya 
resigned from the office of Company Secretary effective April 08, 
2021. Consequently, upon the recommendation of the NRC, the 
Board, at its meeting held on April 14, 2021, unanimously approved 
the appointment of Mr. Avishek Ghosh (ACS No. 44347), as the 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company effective 
April 14, 2021.

Accordingly, Mr. Sandeep Kumar, Managing Director, Mr. Subhra 
Sengupta, Chief Financial Officer, and Mr. Avishek Ghosh, Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer, are designated as KMP of your 
Company as on April 14, 2021.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is duly constituted as per the provisions of the 
Act, applicable Rules framed there under read with the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. The primary objective of the Committee is monitoring 
and supervising the Management’s financial reporting process 
to ensure accurate and timely disclosures with highest levels of 
transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. During the 
financial year, there has been no instance where the Board has not 
accepted any recommendation of the Committee.

The Committee comprises of Mr. Krishnava  Dutt (Chairman), 
Dr. Pingali Venugopal, Ms. Samita Shah and Mr. Amit Ghosh. The 
Committee met 6 (six) times during the year under review. Details of 
terms of reference of the Committee, number and dates of meetings 
held and attendance of Members during the year are part of the 
Corporate Governance Report.

Internal Control Systems
The Board is responsible for ensuring that Internal Financial Controls 
(IFC) are laid down in the Company and that such controls are 
adequate and operating effectively.

The Company’s IFC framework is commensurate with the size, scale 
and complexity of the operations of the Company. The details of the 
IFC framework and their adequacy are included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report.

Risk Management
Amidst various micro and macro uncertainties and volatile business 
environment, the Company faces frequent changes in technology, 
geo-politics, financial markets, regulations, etc. which affect the 
value chain at large. To build a sustainable business that can respond 

to these changes, the Company has an agile and responsive risk 
management framework for identifying, prioritising and mitigating 
risks which may impact attainment of short and long-term business 
goals of the Company.

The risk management framework, based on the holding Company’s 
Group risk management process, is aligned with strategic planning, 
deployment and capital project evaluation process of the Company 
on a proactive basis. The process aims to analyse internal and 
external environment and manage economic, financial, market, 
operational, compliance, sustainability and business continuity risks 
and capitalises opportunities for business success. The development 
and implementation of risk management policy has been covered in 
the Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this 
report.

The Company periodically reviews the identified key risk areas, 
mapped and linked with operational objectives. These risks are 
periodically revisited against their respective mitigation plans. 
The Board has a separate Risk Management Committee consisting 
of Directors and a management representative, responsible for 
monitoring and reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring 
its effectiveness. The Audit Committee also has additional oversight 
in the area of financial risks and controls. The major risks identified by 
the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through 
mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The Committee meets 
at periodic intervals and monitors, evaluates and strengthens the 
effectiveness of risk management framework of the Company.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy
The Company has a well-defined Vigil Mechanism policy in place 
that provides a formal process for all Directors, employees, business 
associates and vendors of the Company to approach the Ethics 
Counsellor/ Chairman of the Audit Committee. Due awareness 
is made across the organization and business partners to enable 
anyone to make protective disclosures about any unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Tata Code 
of Conduct (TCoC). During the year under review, no person has 
been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. In 
addition, Directors, employees, and vendors, may approach the 
Ethics Counsellor to make any such protected disclosure. During 
the year under review, the Company also undertook a series of 
communication and training programmes for various stakeholders. 

The Whistle Blower Policy is an extension of the TCoC which requires 
every Director/ employee/business associate/ vendor to promptly 
report to the Management any actual or possible violation of the 
TCoC or any event which he or she becomes aware of, that could 
affect the business or reputation of the Company. The said policy is 
available on the Company’s website at www. tatametaliks.com/static-
files/pdf/policies/whistleblower-policy.pdf.

During the year under review, the Company received 1 (one) whistle-
blower complaint which was duly investigated and resolved.

Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at 
the workplace. The Company has adopted a policy on prevention, 
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line 
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with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
there under. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, 
trainees, etc.) are covered under this Policy.

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the 
constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee as per the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the year under review, the Company received 1 (one) 
complaint of sexual harassment in the later part of Q4. As on the date 
of this report, the investigation has been completed and the matter is 
due for final resolution shortly.

Related Party Transactions
In compliance with the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 
Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions 
(RPTs) and manner of dealing with RPTs which is available on the 
Company’s website at the link: https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-
files/pdf/policies/rpt-policy.pdf

All transactions with related parties during FY 2020-21 were reviewed 
and approved by the Audit Committee and were at Arm’s Length 
Price (ALP) and in the Ordinary Course of Business (OCB). Prior 
omnibus approval was obtained for all RPTs which were of repetitive 
nature and entered in the OCB and on an ALP basis. The transactions 
entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted were 
reviewed by Audit Committee on quarterly basis.

Pursuant to the third proviso of Section 188(1) of the Act, the 
compliance with the provisions of Section 188(1) is not applicable, 
where all RPTs are carried out in the OCB and under ALP basis. 
Accordingly, the disclosure of RPTs as required under Section 134(3)
(h) of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for FY 2020-
21. However, the said disclosure is enclosed as Annexure E since 
there were 3 (three) material RPTs in FY 2020-21 under SEBI Listing 
Regulations.

Details of RPTs entered into by the Company, in terms of Ind AS-24 
are disclosed in notes to the financial statements forming part of this 
Integrated Report. There was no other material RPTs entered into by 
the Company with its Promoters, Directors, KMPs or other designated 
persons during FY 2020-21, except those reported in the financial 
statements. None of your Directors or KMPs had any pecuniary 
relationships or transactions with the Company during FY2020-21, 
other than remuneration as disclosed elsewhere in the report.

Approval of Members is being sought for 3 (three) material RPTs for 
FY 2021-22 at the ensuing AGM.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Based on the framework of IFC established and maintained, the work 
performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and 
external consultants, including the audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews 
performed by management and the relevant Board committees, 
including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the 
Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective 
during FY 2020-21.

Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with 
Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board, to the best of its knowledge and 
ability, confirms that:

a)   in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

b)  they have selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 
and of the profit of the Company for that period;

c)  they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

d)  they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern 
basis;

e)  they have laid down internal financial controls in the Company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively; and

f)  they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with 
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.

Business Responsibility Report
SEBI requires companies to prepare and present to stakeholders 
a Business Responsibility Report (‘BRR’) in the prescribed format. 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
the top 1,000 listed companies (based on market capitalisation 
calculated as on March 31 of every financial year) is required to 
prepare a BRR, describing the initiatives taken by the Company from 
an environmental, social and governance perspective, in the format 
as prescribed by SEBI.

SEBI, however, allows companies to follow an internationally 
recognized framework to report on the initiatives undertaken by the 
Company on environmental, social, and governance perspective. 
Further, SEBI has on February 6, 2017, advised companies that are 
required to prepare BRR to transition towards an Integrated Report. 
As stated earlier in the Report, the Company has followed the <IR> 
framework of the IIRC to report on all the six capitals that are used to 
create long-term stakeholder value. Our Integrated Report has been 
assessed and Bureau Veritas has provided the required assurance. We 
are also enclosing the BRR as Annexure F to this Report. The same is 
available on our website at https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/
pdf/annual-report/BR-Report-20-21.pdf

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates
The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture 
company as on March 31, 2021. Accordingly, the requisite disclosure 
as per Section 129(3) of the Act in Form AOC-1 is not applicable.

Auditors
Statutory Auditors
Members of the Company at the 27th Annual General Meeting held 
on July 26, 2017, approved the appointment of Price Waterhouse & 
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Co Chartered Accountants LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration 
No.304026E/ E300009), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for 
a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from the conclusion 
of 27th AGM until the conclusion of 32nd AGM of the Company to be 
held in the year 2022, subject to ratification of their appointment by 
Members at every AGM, if so required under the Act.

In terms of the provisions relating to statutory auditors forming part 
of the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, notified on May 7, 2018, 
ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors at every AGM is 
no more a legal requirement. Accordingly, the Notice convening 
the ensuing AGM does not carry any resolution on ratification of 
appointment of Statutory Auditors.

The report of the Statutory Auditor forms part of the Integrated 
Report and Annual Accounts 2020-21. During the year under review, 
the Auditors did not report any matter under Section 143(12) of the 
Act, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 
134(3)(ca) of the Act.

Secretarial Auditor
In compliance with provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board, upon the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, had approved the appointment of Mr. P. V. 
Subramanian, Company Secretary in Whole-time-Practice [C.P. No. 
2077, ACS 4585], as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the 
Financial Year ending March 31, 2021. The Secretarial Audit Report 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, in Form MR-3, forms an 
integral part of this report and is annexed herewith as Annexure G.

Cost Auditors
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act and the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company is 
required to maintain its cost records and get the same audited by a 
Cost Accountant in practice. Accordingly, the cost records are made 
and maintained by the Company as required under Section 148(1) of 
the Act. 

The Board has, based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, approved appointment of Messrs. Shome & Banerjee, 
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No: 000001) as the Cost Auditors 
of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2022.

Messrs. Shome & Banerjee have vast experience in the field of cost 
audit and have been conducting the audit of the cost records of the 
Company for the past several years. Pursuant to Section 148 of the 
Act, read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors 
(as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the 
Board) is being sought from the Members of the Company at the 
ensuing AGM. The details of the same are provided in the Notice 
convening the AGM. We seek your support in ratifying the proposed 
remuneration of `3 lakh plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of 

out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial 
Year ending March 31, 2022.

Auditors’ qualification
No qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers are 
provided in the reports by the Statutory Auditors, Secretarial Auditor 
and Cost Auditors respectively.

Annual Return
The Annual Return for financial year 2020-21 as per provisions of the 
Act and Rules in Form MGT-7 thereto, is available on the Company’s 
website at https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/annual-
return-mgt7-20-21.pdf.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or 
Courts
There has been no significant and material order(s), passed by any 
Regulator(s) or Court(s) or Tribunal(s), impacting the going concern 
status of the Company’s operations. However, Members’ attention is 
drawn to the statement on contingent liabilities and commitments in 
the notes to the Financial Statements.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the 
close of the financial year till the date of this Report which affects the 
financial position of the Company for the reporting period.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments
Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments made 
during the year under review in accordance with Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to this report (Annexure H)

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings & Outgo
Details of energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo are annexed herewith as Annexure I.

Deposits
The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits nor does the 
Company have any outstanding deposits under Section 73 of the Act, 
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 as on 
the date of the Balance Sheet.

Other Disclosures
The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with 
the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are 
adequate and operating effectively.

No disclosure or reporting is made in respect of the following items 
as there were no transactions or change during the year under 
review:

• There was no revision in the financial statements other than as 
required to be done as per Ind AS; and

• There was no change in the nature of business.
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Awards and Accolades
Your Directors are happy to report that the Company was bestowed 
with several awards during the year. Noteworthy ones are mentioned 
below:

• “Best Governed Company ” in the Listed Segment, Medium 
Category by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) at the 
ICSI National Awards for Excellence in Corporate Governance.

• Declared in the league of “Industry Leader” within the Tata Group 
at the Tata Business Excellence Model (TBEM) Assessment;

• League of American Communications Professionals (LACP) 
awarded the Integrated Report FY-20 as:

 − 20th Best Integrated Report (worldwide)

 − Platinum award for Integrated Report (worldwide) “up to  
$1 billion revenue” category 

 − Special achievement Silver award for Financial disclosure

• 4.5 Star Award at the 13th CII Energy Conservation Award 
(ENCON) 2020 in the large scale category.

• Sinter Plant Team ranked 3rd and Logistics team secured 
1st Runner up position in 20th National Supervisory Skill 
Competition.
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A. Overview
  This operating and financial review is intended to convey the 

Management’s perspective on the financial and operating 
performance of the Company as on the close of the Financial 
Year 2020-21. This Report is to be read in conjunction with 
the Company’s financial statements, the schedules and notes 
thereto and the other information included elsewhere in the 
Integrated Report. The Company’s financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(‘Ind AS’) complying with the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘Act’), as amended and Regulations issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) from time to 
time.

B.  External environment, industry structure and 
development

  The COVID-19 pandemic led to an economic contraction in 
2020 that was both sudden and deep compared to the previous 
global crises. The global economy contracted 3.3%, advanced 
economies contracted 4.7% whereas the emerging economies 
and developing markets contracted by 2.2%. China was the only 
major economy that grew by 2.3% in 2020. As the Coronavirus 
pandemic spread its onslaught with millions of people suffering 
and losing lives, it led to widespread disruption of global trade 
and commerce. With forced shutdowns, disarray in production, 
uncertainties in supply chains, early days of COVID-19 (in the 
months of March to July 2020) were by far the most challenging 
for the country. Businesses had to re-calibrate their strategies 
and increase their agility to respond to such an unexpected 
challenge, in order to stay relevant in the post-COVID-19 world. 
Reeling from the effects of a global disruption, the country’s 
industrial production witnessed a steep decline in April 
2020. The current Global Production Index has also taken a 
substantial beating compared to pre-pandemic levels though 
the trajectory of the decline slowed & recovery has started 
towards the latter part of the year 2020-21. Total industrial 
capacity utilization did, however, improve substantially from 
the second half of 2020. Most economies around the world 
have contracted in FY 2020-21 and it may take at least 12-18 
months to recover from this unprecedented disruption and 
uncertainties. A few economies such as India with younger 
population may take less time compared to others in the West. 
China’s GDP, however, grew over 2% in 2020, making China 
the only major economy in the world to avoid a contraction. 
Most businesses started recovering from the latter part of the 
year with a few sectors witnessing strong tailwinds for growth. 
With a second wave of the COVID-19, global economic stability 
continues to remain uncertain.

  India’s GDP growth fell from 6.1% in fiscal 2018-19 to a 11-year 
low of 4.2% in fiscal 2019-20 which subsequently contracted 
by 8% in fiscal 2020-21 due to the impact of COVID-19. Even 
as the economy navigated a deep, though temporary drop in 
economic activities, it started seeing an uptrend in inflation 
posing major challenge for the policy makers. The nationwide 
lockdown and supply disruption resulted in overall inflation 
reaching 7.6% in October 2020. 

  Worldsteel reported that China continues to lead global crude 
steel production with production in 2020 reaching 1,053 Million 
Tonnes (Mt), up by 5.2%. China’s share of global crude steel 
production increased from 53.3% in 2019 to 56.5% in 2020. 
India’s crude steel production for 2020 was 99.6 Mt down by 
10.6% as compared to 2019. China remained world’s largest 
crude steel producer in 2020 followed by India (99.6 Mt), Japan 
(83.2 Mt), Russia (73.4 Mt) and the USA (72.7 Mt).

  Closure of production units, customers being hit by shutdowns, 
disrupted supply chains, declining stakeholder confidence 
and delayed investment/projects, not only impacted global 
consumption activity severely but also volatility in financial 
markets coupled with falling oil prices further impacted 
the steel industry at large. The recovery path from the crisis 
continues to depend on the economic stability, success 
of vaccination, and controlling second wave of COVID-19. 
The manufacturing sector has rebounded faster than other 
industries, but supply chain disruptions including steep 
rise in ocean freight continue to pose challenges. The Steel 
industry, however, has demonstrated strong resilience and is 
on an upward trajectory which is driven by strong growth in 
China as also cyclical revival. With several restructuring and 
consolidation activities on the anvil, recovery is expected to be 
quick, giving India the impetus to be among the brightest spots 
in the world’s steel industry with rising steel production.

  Pig Iron and DI pipe businesses of the Company are largely 
driven by GDP growth at the macro-level. Volatile global 
and domestic iron & steel production heavily impacted both 
businesses initially in Q1 FY 21. Pig Iron business recovered 
early on the back of a resurgence in Steel & commodity prices. 
Diversion of funds by the Government towards COVID-19 
relief and the impact of the 1st wave adversely impacted the 
water Infrastructure projects which in turn affected the DI pipe 
deliveries; however, the situation started improving towards the 
end of Q3 culminating in a strong Q4 of FY 2020-21 and taking 
the momentum into the new Fiscal year.

  Coal and coke, key raw materials for production of hot 
metal, experienced volatilities in prices throughout the year 
impacting our input costs. Coke prices increased substantially 
from ~US$260/t levels in Q1 FY 2020-21 rising to ~US$450/t in 
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February 2021 and finally closing the year at ~US$380/t CFR 
India. However, the coking coal prices did not show a similar 
uptrend leading to a significant price gap between converted 
coke and market coke. The company managed the situation 
quite well with ~90% of its coke supplies being sourced 
either from its captive coke manufacturing facility or from the 
Tata Steel Group. The net fuel rate in the blast furnaces was 
significantly reduced and coal injection was enhanced to the 
highest ever average levels in both the furnaces. This, along 
with smart buying from the Raw Material procurement team 
kept the fuel cost well within control. The international iron ore 
fines price too continued to remain volatile during FY 2020-21; 
prices moved up from ~`1,150/t to ~`4,050/t level and finally 
closing the year at ~ `2,980/t (OMC price).

  India, as a major Pig Iron (PI) manufacturer and exporter in the 
world, was already reeling under poor demand in Q4 FY2020-21. 
COVID-19 pandemic and associated lockdowns coupled with 
labour unavailability in foundries resulted in a steep fall in the 
demand in Q1 FY-21. However, export of PI helped mitigate the 
shock to some extent in Q1 FY-21 as many large manufacturers 
diverted large supplies to export market.

  Not surprisingly, the domestic Foundry Grade (FG) PI prices 
witnessed a sharp drop in Q1 FY 21 across major markets due to 
almost negligible domestic demand hamstrung by the supply 
chain disruptions. PI prices started to recover from July 2020 
backed by increase in Steel & commodity prices. Deliveries, 
which commenced slowly in May 2020, gradually picked up 
from June 2020. PI demand improved considerably from Q3 FY 
21 due to reopening and ramping up of operations in all major 
foundry clusters upto ~ 90%+ utilization levels. The domestic PI 
prices also moved up considerably giving the Company much 
needed tailwinds to weather the challenges.

  Amidst the various challenges including curtailed operating 
days in FY 2020-21 due to lockdown/restrictions, the Company 
was resilient and did well to sell 287Kt in FY 2020-21 as 
compared to 314Kt in the previous year.

  DI pipe (DIP) demand, which is driven by investments in 
water, sanitation and irrigation infrastructure projects of the 
Government, was impacted after the nationwide lockdown with 
award of new projects witnessing a complete halt in Q1 in most 
states as funds were diverted from water sector to healthcare. 
The DIP industry endured severe stress due to limited 
availability of orders available for dispatch and fund clearances 
from the Government. Challenges were further increased with 
poor availability of new projects which resulted in aggressive 
pricing by peers, leading to the industry facing downward price 
movements. Major export markets such as South East Asia (SEA) 
also remained closed for business in Q1.

  However, the situation improved slowly from the middle of Q2 
and order bookings witnessed a visible momentum from Q3 
with various Government projects picking up. Dispatches were 
restored to almost pre-COVID-19 levels only in Q4 and supply 

chains responded well to overcome the liquidity crisis and 
various operational uncertainties. The DIP business rebounded 
strongly in Q4 and closed the financial year with sales of 194Kt 
as compared to 218Kt in the previous year despite the aforesaid 
challenges. 

  The medium to long term outlook in the DI pipe business 
remains very encouraging with the Government’s 180% 
increase in budgetary allocation in water sector for ‘Jal Jeevan 
Mission’ in FY 2021-22. With such scale of proposed investment 
by Central and State Governments in the water sector, next 
few years will provide great opportunities for the pipe industry 
in general and DI pipe industry in particular. The Company 
is committed to complete its DI pipe expansion project at 
the earliest but in 2 phases with the 1st phase likely to be 
completed by end of Fiscal year 2021-22. 

C. Impact of COVID-19
  As already reported in FY 2019-20, the outbreak of COVID-19 

disrupted businesses across the country. The manufacturing 
operations of the Company’s plant in Kharagpur, West Bengal, 
was also impacted due to the suspension of the operations 
from latter part of March ’20, till its gradual commencement in a 
staggered manner from May 12, 2020 onwards, adhering to the 
Government guidelines and developing robust protocols for 
resumption and continuity of business. 

  The overall impact on the operations of the Company due to 
the above suspension and the underlying financial impact was 
significant in the Apr-June’20 quarter with the Company going 
into red for the first time after several years. The Company 
quickly shifted gears and focused on conserving cash and 
ensuring adequate liquidity for its operations that were 
gradually ramping up. The expansion project was slowed down 
with major efforts directed at health & safety of the workforce. 

  The Company assessed the impact of COVID-19 related 
lockdown on the carrying value of fixed assets, receivable, 
inventory, current liquidity position, future business condition 
and cash flow as at the balance sheet date and concluded 
that no material adjustments are required in the financial 
statements. However, the Company will continue to monitor 
any material changes to future economic conditions.

  The Response to COVID-19 and the CSR efforts are detailed in 
the Board’s Report.

D. Opportunities and Threats
  India is the second largest castings producer in the world. Its 

castings industry is driven by robust demand in the Engineering 
sector through Make-in-India scheme (Atmanirbhar Bharat), 
auto & auto-components, railways, defense and sanitary 
castings. Therefore, the Company can leverage various 
strengths and competitive advantage of the opportunities in 
foundry grade PI business by offering differentiated products 
& services such as consistency in chemistry, customised PI 
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offerings (with various specification for silicon, manganese, 
sulphur & phosphorous), technical service, lower energy 
consumption by use of our PI brand, Tata eFee, customer-
centric distribution channel and providing unique customer 
experience through our newly implemented Customer 
Relationship Management (CRM) solution.

  India’s PI production hit an all-time low in April 2020. PI prices 
are influenced by the volatility in raw material prices such as 
iron-ore, Coking coal & Coke as also to some extent by the price 
variations in other commodities including Scrap & Steel prices. 
Besides the raw material threat, recession in some of its demand 
driving sectors such as automobile and over supply due to 
large scale production of PI by integrated steel producers could 
adversely impact the foundry grade PI industry too. Some 
part of this threat has been mitigated by the Company as its 
exposure to coke volatility is minimised in view of in-house 
coke manufacturing and long-term purchase agreement with 
Tata Steel. The prices of PI have moved up at the year-end 
owing to higher demand from user industries. 

  Governments across the globe are taking measures to 
meet the growing demand for water. Rapid urbanization in 
emerging economies has significantly fueled the demand for 
infrastructure services such as roads, transportation, electric 
and power supply, water supply, and sanitation. Further, due 
to a rise in migration rate of the population towards urban 
centers, the demand for DI pipes for waste water treatment has 
also increased. DI pipe market is poised to grow at a healthy 
CAGR for the next five years in view of significantly increased 
budgetary outlay for the water sector by the Government. 

  On the production side, the benefits of the coke oven 
expansion and the 15 MW captive power plant project will 
accrue from FY 2021-22 onwards after commissioning of DIP 
expansion project.

E. Operational and Financial Performance
  Hot metal production in FY 2020-21 was 4.66 lakh tonnes (Lt), 

a decrease of 14% over FY 2019-20. The lower production was 
attributable to lower number of operational days available 
during the year due to lockdown/ other restrictions arising out 
of COVID-19 pandemic. However, the operational performance 
of the blast furnaces was far better than the previous year 
in terms of fuel rate, coal injection rate, oxygen enrichment, 
productivity and availability. Finished DI pipe production stood 
at 1.87 Lt, lower by 17% over FY 2019-20 primarily due to lower 
operating days owing to lockdown/other restrictions during 
the year. The DI pipe plant continues to operate at benchmark 
operational parameters of yield, rejection rate, operational 
consumption norms, etc.

  The Company recorded a turnover of `1,917 Crore in FY 2020-21, 
a 6.5% decrease over previous year. The performance on the 
top line was lower primarily due to lower volume of sales of pig 
iron and DI pipes. However, due to excellent performance of 
blast furnaces in terms of fuel rate & coal injection coupled with 
a resurgence in PI prices, the Company could register a PBT of 
`307 crore in FY 2020-21, a 52% increase over previous year.

  Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as 
compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key 
financial ratios, along with detailed explanations are provided 
hereunder:

SL. 
No.

Key financial ratios 
with significant 
change Y-O-Y

Change % Reason

1 Operating Profit 
margin 

42 Lowest ever net fuel rate 
coupled with operational 
efficiency resulted in increased 
profitability coupled with 
higher prices and decline in raw 
material costs 

2 Net profit margin 42

3 Debt Equity Ratio (63) Focused approach towards 
debt reduction

4 Current Ratio 84 Significant reduction in short 
term borrowings 

5 Interest Coverage 
Ratio 

97 Increased operating margins 
and debt pay-offs resulting in 
lower interest cost 

6 Return on net 
worth

Nil -

E. Outlook 
  Outbreak of COVID-19 has changed the way we do business and 

its impact may be high in the short term. Outlook of both PI and 
DI Pipe businesses is quite sanguine with both a strong cyclical 
recovery of the Iron & Steel industry as also a renewed thrust 
by the Government on Infrastructure particularly in the Water 
& Sanitation sector. It is expected that PI demand in FY 2021-22 
may increase in line with the GDP growth of the country as the 
Engineering Industry gets a fair boost with full recovery of the 
economy. The DI pipe demand could be significantly higher 
in FY 2021-22 due increased outlay by the Government in this 
year’s budget in the water sector. In fact, the outlook of DIP 
demand for next 5 years is very strong with the Government’s 
announcement of robust investment through its flagship 
Scheme of Jal Jeevan Mission both for Rural & Urban areas. 
We however, remain cautiously optimistic as there is some 
uncertainty of the impact of second & possible subsequent 
waves of the pandemic on the economy.

  The COVID-19 outbreak has accelerated the adoption of Digital 
technologies and a greater attention towards Sustainability 
issues. Increased adoption of e-commerce and online services, 
online work and education tools will support the development 
of new enhanced technological tools and services, creating a 
self-reinforcing cycle for technological progress. The Company 
has been on its journey of digital transformation for over 2 
years with focus on key themes such as data analytics, business 
on mobile and smart machines; it is also making concerted 
efforts towards building digital capability & an agile culture in 
the organisation.

  The long term outlook of Company’s business especially the 
DI pipe business is extremely encouraging especially if every 
household in India is to have piped water by 2024 under 
‘Har Ghar Jal’ scheme. The Company is well positioned with 
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extremely competitive cost structure and is in the process of 
doubling its DI pipe capacity through a brownfield expansion; 
this will also enhance its product range and improve the 
product mix thereby putting the Company in a much better 
position to serve its customers.

G. Risk and Concerns
  Company’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) process has 

matured over the years and the ERM team is regularly working 
to make it more effective and robust to cover all areas of 
business including doing planning for different scenarios 
arising out of outbreak of COVID-19. The ERM process involves 
periodic identification of risks which is likely to affect the 
business adversely, rating the risks on their impact and 
likelihood, preparation of risk heat map, identification of early 
warning indicators, estimation of risk velocity, implementation 
of risk mitigation plans by the risk owners and continuous 
monitoring of the mitigation plans by the Risk Management 
Committee of the Board and the Management. Risks are being 
identified in the areas including sales, supply chain, finance, 
regulatory approvals, environment, operations, safety, projects, 
industrial relations, etc. Mitigation strategies and plans have 
been accordingly developed to manage and mitigate the 
likelihood and impact of such risks.

  Pig Iron is more vulnerable to market volatilities of raw material 
prices and steel prices. Therefore, the Company works on these 
risks and mitigates them to the extent possible by optimizing 
the raw material procurement cost, controlling the blast 
furnace operational parameters and differentiating its products 
through customization, technical services and other brand 
promises.

  The DIP demand has been growing at double digit rate over 
the last 5-6 years excluding FY20-21 due to impact of COVID-19. 
Going forward, the growth in demand is expected to be even 
higher with the Government’s priority and renewed thrust on 
Water. Hence, the long term risks of DI Pipe demand going 
down is quite low. However, liquidity issues could be a matter of 
concern in some states.

  Foreign currency exposure from import of coking coal/
capital equipment is managed by taking appropriate actions 
such as forward cover etc. to mitigate the risks as per foreign 
exchange policy of the Company and the applicable regulatory 
framework. For more details, please refer the notes to the 
financial statements.

H. Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy
  The Company’s internal control systems and policies remain 

commensurate with the Company’s size and nature of 
operations to provide assurance that all assets are safeguarded, 
transactions are authorised, recorded and reported properly 
following all applicable statutes, Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles, Tata Code of Conduct and other 
corporate policies.

  The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are 
responsible for ensuring that these controls are adequate 

and operating effectively. The Audit Committee comprises of 
members, majority of whom, including the Chairperson are 
Independent Directors. The Company has laid down Standard 
Operating Procedures and policies to guide the operations 
of the business. The Systems Assurance Department, headed 
by the Internal Auditor, conducts regular audits in various 
functional areas as per an audit plan approved by the Audit 
Committee. Audit planning and executions are oriented 
towards assessing the state of internal controls, making them 
stronger and addressing the risks in various functional areas. 
The internal auditor reports to the Audit Committee its findings 
and observations, and rating of internal controls status for each 
area reviewed. Audit Committee meets periodically to review 
audit issues and follow up on implementation of corrective 
actions.

  Further, Internal Financial Control (IFC) requirements have 
been implemented as per Act. It has been designed to provide 
reasonable assurance with respect to recording and providing 
reliable financial and operational information, complying with 
applicable laws, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, 
executing transactions with proper authorization, and ensuring 
compliance with corporate policies. The controls, based on 
prevailing business conditions and processes, have been tested 
during the year and there was no reportable material weakness 
in the design or effectiveness. The IFC framework has been 
reviewed by internal and independent external auditors.

  The Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by Internal 
Auditor at its meetings. The Audit Committee, whenever 
it deems fit, engages in independent discussions with the 
external auditor and the Management to discuss the adequacy 
and effectiveness of IFC.

  Audit Committee also seeks views of the statutory auditors on 
the adequacy of internal control systems. In compliance with 
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, the Statutory Auditors have issued 
an unmodified report on the IFC over Financial Reporting which 
forms a part of the Independent Auditors’ Report also forming 
part of this Report.

H. Human Resources and Industrial Relations
  The HR function has set for itself two major objectives – First, ‘to 

be the Employer of Choice’, and Second, ‘to develop processes 
which sustain a happy, positively engaged and socially sensitive 
workforce.’ With a firm belief that ‘People Practices’ can 
yield sustainable competitive advantage to an organisation, 
the Company’s HR strategy is built on 4 pillars (a) Talent 
management, (b) Capability development, (c) Productivity 
improvement and (d) Organisational engagement. 

  The strong focus of HR in attracting and retaining talent 
was reflected in initiatives such as identification of Hi-Pot 
employees through Development Centres, participation of Hi-
Pot Talent in Action Learning Projects, Cross-Functional Teams 
& Task Forces to handle key Organisational challenges, regular 
check-in conversations of Senior Leaders with Target Employee 
segment to name a few. The Company continued to deepen 
the talent base & prepare the leadership pipeline through 
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campus recruitments and pre-placement offers to candidates 
from premier institutes, identifying high potential talent, and 
mapping the succession planning for critical positions. As an 
equal opportunity employer, the Company continued to recruit 
from socially disadvantageous sections which demonstrates 
the Company’s commitment towards Affirmative Action and 
diversity.

   To support the efforts of business on Digital, an initiative on 
“Culture & Capability building” was launched along with an 
external partner with the thrust on digital mindset activation, 
competency building and developing the overall DQ (Digital 
Quotient) of the Company. Learning & Development has 
been receiving special attention with focus on e-learning 
and usage of virtual platform & gamification to embed a 
culture of learning in the workforce. Young Talent with digital 
learning were selected to become Digital Champions and 
Reverse Mentors; they are helping spread the knowledge of 
Digital across the Organisation including at the shopfloor 
level. Reverse mentoring of the Senior Leadership team 
continued and the coverage was expanded to a larger number 
in the Leadership team so that they could spend regular and 
dedicated time with their Reverse Mentors and get a better 
appreciation of digital technologies. For the technical capability 
building, shop floor short term training, structured knowledge 
sharing at the department & function level, and class-room 
learning from subject matter experts were promoted.

  Digitization & Automation have been the key levers to improve 
the organizational productivity & efficiency. Other interventions 
include rationalization of contract labour, contractor 
consolidation and competency development. 

  Under employee engagement, a deep dive in the action plan 
was taken to improve the OFIs at functional to departmental 
to HOD level so that the key issues could be addressed and 
resolved. Other engagement activities such as virtual Games, 
R&R, Kudos, etc. continued in their own way with a digital tinge.

 Total number of employee as on March 31, 2021 was 1,263

  The Company has enjoyed cordial relations with its employees 
and the unions at its factory and received support in 

implementation of improvement initiatives that impact safety, 
quality, cost efficiency and productivity across all functions. 
Overall, FY-21 has been a year of success and resilience despite 
the challenges faced due to the pandemic.

J. Statutory Compliance
  The Managing Director, after obtaining confirmation from all 

the departments of the Company, makes a periodic declaration 
regarding the compliance with the provisions of various 
statutes, applicable to the Company.

  An enterprise-wide digital compliance management tool has 
been implemented to help monitor compliance real-time across 
the organization. Due systems and processes are in place to 
ensure effectiveness of this tool.

  The Company Secretary, being the Compliance Officer, ensures 
compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

  Sources: Reports of RBI, World Steel Association (WSA/ 
Worldsteel) and India Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF) and Team 
analysis.

 Cautionary Statement
  Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis 

describing the objectives, projections, estimates and 
expectations of the Company, may be ‘forward-looking 
statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and 
regulations. Actual results might differ substantially or 
materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors 
that could make a difference to the Company’s operations 
include, among others, economic conditions affecting demand/
supply, price conditions in the domestic and overseas markets 
in which the Company operates, changes in the Government 
regulations, tax laws and other statutes and incidental factors.
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ANNEXURE B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies ( Corporate Social Responsibility Policy), Rules, 2014]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company 
  Our CSR initiatives are guided by our CSR Policy (‘Policy’). CSR initiatives is an integral part of our overall business policy which is aligned 

with our business goals. It is our continuous endeavor to uplift the quality of life of our surrounding villages. Our CSR activities focus on 
education, health, essential amenities and are in alignment with key focus areas of the Tata Group. We also undertake community centric 
interventions in the areas of sports, disaster relief and environment.

2. Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee :

Sl 
No. Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship Number of meetings held 

during the year
Number of meetings 

attended during the year

1 Dr. Rupali Basu Chairperson 3 3
2 Mr. Sandeep Kumar Member 3 3
3 Mr. Sanjiv Paul Member 3 2
4 Dr. Pingali Venugopal Member 3 3
5 Ms. Samita Shah Member 3 2

3.  The web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board 
are disclosed on the website of the Company are provided below :

The Composition of the CSR Committee https://www.tatametaliks.com/corporate/board-committees.aspx
CSR Policy https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-

Accountability-Policy.pdf
CSR Project as approved by the Board https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/sustainability/list-of-projects-20-21.pdf

4.  Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable :  

  The Company voluntarily carries out impact assessment of certain CSR Projects in the normal course. There are no projects undertaken 
or completed after January 22, 2021, for which the impact assessment report is applicable in FY 2020-21.

5.  Details of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies  
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set-off for the financial 
year, if any:

Sl 
No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from preceding 

financial years ( in `)
Amount required to be set off for the financial 

year, if any ( in `)

Not Applicable

6 Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013:    `21,120 lakhs

7 (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013:  `422.40 lakhs

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years.  NIL

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any      NIL

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).       `422.40 lakhs
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8 (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year :

Amount Unspent ( in ` lakhs)

Total Amount Spent for 
the Financial Year (in `)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account 
as per section 135 (6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as per second 
proviso to Section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

451.03* NIL

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year (Annexure A)   : `139.75 lakhs*

 (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year (Annexure B)  : `292.82 lakhs*

 (d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads         : `18.46 lakhs*

 (e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable       : Nil

 (f) Total amount spent for the financial year ( 8b+8c+8d+8e)      : `451.03 lakhs*

 (g) Excess amount for set-off, if any           : Nil

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in ` lakhs)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) 422.40
(ii) Total amount spent for the financial year 422.40
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year (ii) –(i)
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR project or programmes or activities of the previous financial year, if any Nil
(v) Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial year (iii)-(iv) Nil

  *Amount spent from the available corpus of Sadbhavna Trust. The corpus includes the sum of `422.40 lakhs contributed by the Company during the year 
in discharge of its CSR obligation.

 The Company does not propose to avail any set-off, against the excess amount spent in FY2020-21, for succeeding financial years.

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years :

Sl. 
No. 

Preceding Financial 
Year

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 
Section 135(6)  
( in `)

Amount spent in the 
reporting Financial 
Year ( in `)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as 
per section 135(6), if any Amount remaining 

to be spent in 
succeeding financial 
years in `)Name of the Fund Amount ( in `) Date of transfer

NA NA NA NA NA NA

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year (s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl. 
No. Project ID Name of the 

Project

Financial Year in 
which the project 
was commenced

Project duration
Total amount 
allocated for the 
project (in `)

Amount spent 
on the project 
in the reporting 
Financial Year 
(in `)

Cumulative 
amount spent 
at the end 
of reporting 
Financial Year 
( in `)

Status of the 
project – 
Completed / 
Ongoing

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

10. Details of creation or acquisition of capital asset acquired through CSR spent in the financial year : None

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Nil

b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NA

c)  Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. NA

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset): NA

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013:

NA

Sd/- Sd/-
Rupali Basu Sandeep Kumar

(Chairperson, CSR Committee) (Managing Director)
Date : April 14, 2021 DIN : 01778854 DIN : 02139274
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ANNEXURE C

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company’s Corporate Governance Philosophy
Corporate Governance is the process of creation and enhancement 
of long-term sustainable value for various stakeholders including 
customers, vendors, investors, regulators, employees, and the society 
at large through ethical and transparent business practices. Sound 
and effective corporate governance practices, represent the strong 
foundation on which successful businesses are built to last. Strong 
leadership and effective corporate governance practices have been 
the Company’s hallmark inherited from the Tata culture and ethos. At 
Tata Metaliks, it is essential that the affairs are managed in a fair and 
transparent manner.

The Company has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical 
governance practices. Accordingly, we strive to go beyond stipulated 
corporate governance guidelines, by periodically benchmarking 
our governance practices with best practices collated from 
different sectors. We remain committed to protect the rights of our 
shareholders and disclose timely, adequate and accurate information 
regarding our financials, performance, as well as the leadership and 
governance of the Company.

The Company’s corporate governance philosophy continues to be 
strengthened through the Tata Business Excellence Model (‘TBEM’).

Tata Metaliks, as a Responsible Corporate Citizen, remains focused 
to realise its Vision of ‘Reaching Tomorrow First’ and the Tata Steel 
Group (‘TSG’) aspiration to be the global steel industry benchmark 
for ‘value creation’ and ‘corporate citizenship’by adopting necessary 
interventions, to achieve its goals of safety, environment, people, and 
value creation. 

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated 
under Regulations 17 to 27 read with para C, D and E of Schedule V 
and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as applicable, with 
respect to corporate governance.

Code of conduct
The Company has adopted the Tata Code of Conduct (‘TCoC’ / 
‘Code’) for Executive Directors (‘EDs’), Non-Executive Directors 
(‘NEDs’), Independent Directors (‘IDs’), Senior Management 
Personnel and all employees of the Company. The Code is available 
on the Company’s website at https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-
files/pdf/TCOC.pdf. 

All Directors and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed 
compliance with the Code for the financial year ended March 31, 
2021 in terms of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. A 
declaration to this effect, duly signed by the Managing Director, is 
annexed to this report.

Tata Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider 
Trading & Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices
The Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’) has adopted the 
Tata Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and the 
Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices (‘Insider Trading Code’), 
in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from 
time to time (‘SEBI Insider Trading Regulations’). All Directors, 
employees and other Designated Persons (DPs), who could have 
access to unpublished price sensitive information of the Company, 
are governed by this Insider Trading Code. 

The trading window for dealing in equity shares of the Company 
is duly closed 7 (seven) days prior to the end of each quarter for 
declaration of financial results, and for any other material events, 
if any, as per the Code and opens after 48 hours of the Outcome of 
Board Meeting / results / material information (if any) become(s) 
generally available. Various awareness sessions are also conducted 
within the organisation to increase awareness about this regulation. 
Expectations of Audit Committee Chairman and the Managing 
Director (MD) are also communicated to all DPs to ensure strict 
compliance in letter and spirit.

Mr. Avishek Ghosh, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer is 
the Compliance Officer in terms of Insider Trading Code. The Code of 
Corporate Disclosure Practices is available on the Company’s website 
at https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/corporate-
disclosure-practice.pdf

Board of Directors
The Board, at the core of the Corporate Governance framework, 
discharges its fiduciary duties, to ensure that the Company’s 
philosophy on Corporate Governance is extended across the value 
chain of both the businesses in which the Company operates. The 
Board, comprising of eminent professionals with wide expertise 
across a range of domains relevant to the Growth vision of the 
Company, remains committed to enhance long term value creation 
for all stakeholders.

Size and Composition of the Board
We believe that an optimum mix of NEDs, ED(s), and IDs is imperative 
to maintain the Board’s independence and separate the functions 
of governance and management. In order to maintain the Board’s 
independence and diversity, the Board has a due mix of eight 
Directors, with 1 (one) ED, 3 (three) NEDs, (including a Woman 
Director (‘WD’) and 4 (four) IDs (including a WD). The Board has the 
necessary expertise across multiple domains aligned to the growth 
vision of the Company. Brief profiles of all the Directors are available 
on the website of the Company at https://www.tatametaliks.com/
corporate/board-of-directors.aspx. 
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The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘Act’). None of our Directors serve as a Director or as IDs 
in more than 7 listed companies also our ED does not serve as an ID 
on any listed company as on date. Necessary disclosures regarding 
Committee positions in other public companies as on March 31, 2021 
have been made by the Directors. None of the Directors is related 
to each other. Further, none of our IDs serve as Non-Independent 
Director (NID) of any Company, on the Board of which any of our NIDs 
is an ID.

IDs, constituting 50% of the Board, are Non-Executive Directors 
(NEDs) as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules 
framed thereunder.

Our IDs ensure holistic decision-making of the Board and its various 
Committees. IDs provide their expert advice, and guidance on each 
aspect after seeking due clarifications from the Management. In 
line with our efforts to improve the Governance framework, all our 
mandatory Committees are chaired by IDs.

In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, IDs have 
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation 
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair 
or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the 

declarations received from the IDs, the Board has confirmed that 
they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the 
management. Further, the IDs have in terms of Section 150 of the Act 
read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, confirmed that they have enrolled themselves 
in the Independent Directors’ Databank maintained with the Indian 
Institute of Corporate Affairs.

The terms and conditions of appointment of IDs, as per Regulation 
46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, are available on the Company’s 
website at https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/
independentDirectors.pdf. During the Financial Year 2020-21, none 
of our Directors acted as Member in more than 10 committees or as 
Chairperson in more than 5 committees across all listed entities where 
they serve as a Director. For the purpose of determination of limit 
of the Board Committees, chairpersonship and membership of the 
Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been 
considered as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations.There 
are no inter-se relationships between our Board Members.

Table A: Composition of the Board and Directorships held as on March 31, 2021:

Name of the Director
No. of directorship in other Indian 

Public Companies(1)
No. of Board Committee positions in 

other Indian Public Companies(2) Directorship in other listed entity (Category of 
Directorship)

Chairperson Member Chairperson Member

Non-Independent Directors
Mr. Koushik Chatterjee 
(Chairman)
DIN:00004989

2 3 1 4 a.  Tata Steel Limited 
(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

b.  The Tinplate Company of India Limited 
(Non-Executive, Non-Independent)

c.  Tata Steel Long Products Ltd. 
(Non-Executive, Non-Independent)

d.  Tata Steel BSL Limited 
(Non-Executive, Non-Independent)

e.  TRF Limited 
(Non-Executive, Non-Independent)

Mr. Sanjiv Paul
DIN: 00086974

0 1 - -

Ms. Samita Shah 
DIN: 02350176

Nil 10 0 2

Independent Directors
Mr.Krishnava Dutt
DIN: 02792753

Nil 5 3 2 a.  Tata Steel BSL Limited 
(Independent Director)

b.  Balrampur Chini Mills Limited  
(Independent Director)

c.  TRF Limited 
(Independent Director)

Dr. Pingali Venugopal 
DIN: 05166520

Nil Nil Nil Nil -

Dr. Rupali Basu 
DIN: 01778854

Nil 2 Nil Nil a.  The Tinplate Company of India Limited 
(Independent Director)

b.  Goodricke Group Limited  
(Independent Director)
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Name of the Director
No. of directorship in other Indian 

Public Companies(1)
No. of Board Committee positions in 

other Indian Public Companies(2) Directorship in other listed entity (Category of 
Directorship)

Chairperson Member Chairperson Member

Mr. Amit Ghosh 
DIN: 00482967 Nil

Executive Director
Mr. Sandeep Kumar 
DIN: 02139274 Nil

Notes: 

(1)  Directorships in Indian Public Companies (listed and unlisted) 
excluding Tata Metaliks Limited and Section 8 Companies. 

(2)  In terms of Regulation 26(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
the disclosure includes chairmanship/membership of the Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in other 
Indian Public companies (listed and unlisted) excluding Tata 
Metaliks Limited. Further, membership includes positions as 
Chairperson of committee.

Selection of New Directors and Board Membership 
Criteria
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) formulates 
and recommends to the Board to determine the appropriate 
qualifications, positive attributes, characteristics, skills and 

experience required for the Board as a whole and its individual 
members with the objective of having a Board with diverse 
backgrounds and experience in business, government, education 
and public service. The Policy on Appointment and Removal of 
Directors, along with applicable provisions of the Act, Rules framed 
thereunder, the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Board Diversity 
Policy act as guidelines to select new Directors. The Policy is available 
on our website at https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/
policies/TML-NRC-policy.pdf

Key Board qualifications, expertise and attributes
The Members of the Board remain committed to ensuring that the 
Board is in compliance with the highest standards of Corporate 
Governance. The table below summarizes the key, skills, expertise, 
competencies and attributes which are taken into consideration by 
the NRC while recommending appointment of Directors to the Board:

Table B: Director skills, expertise, competencies and attributes desirable in Company’s business and sector in which it functions:

Areas of Skills/ Expertise/ Competence

Leadership Strategy Operations Technology Finance Governance Regulatory 
Affairs

Mr. Koushik Chatterjee * * * * * * *
Mr. Sandeep Kumar * * * * * * *
Mr. Sanjiv Paul * * * * * * *
Mr. Krishnava Dutt * * * * *
Dr. Pingali Venugopal * * * *
Ms. Samita Shah * * * *
Dr. Rupali Basu * * * * * *
Mr. Amit Ghosh * * * *

Familiarisation Programme for Directors (including 
Independent Directors)
All new Directors (including IDs) inducted on the Board are provided 
a formal orientation programme. The familiarisation programme is 
customized to suit their individual interests and area of expertise. 
IDs are eminent professionals with due experience in the domains 
aligned to the growth vision of your Company. The IDs are well 
updated about their roles and responsibilities, the industry in which 
your Company operates and its business model. The Company 
provides familiarization programme in the form of interactive 
sessions with the Managing Director and various Functional Heads 
of the Company’s manufacturing, marketing, finance and other 
functions. IDs also visit the Company’s plant at Kharagpur, at least 
once a year, to oversee the new initiatives taken up at plant and 
various CSR interventions. However, due to COVID-19 restriction, IDs 
could not visit the plant in FY 2020-21.

The Company Secretary periodically updates the Director(s) about 
regulatory changes and other updates; monthly business updates 
are also shared with Directors to keep them updated on a real-time 
basis. Specific discussions at Meetings, group Level familiarization 
programmes on various aspects help Directors get a deeper 
understanding of the Company, its values, organisational culture, 
business processes and thereby facilitates their active participation in 
meetings and also overseeing the affairs of the Company. The Policy 
on familiarization programme for Directors is available at https://
www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/policy-prog-director.
pdf and details of the orientation given to the IDs in areas of Safety, 
Health and Environment, Business and Strategy, and Governance and 
Operational Matters are available at https://www.tatametaliks.com/
investors/details-of-familiarisation-programme-for-ids.aspx
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Board Evaluation
The NRC has formulated a Policy for evaluation of the Board, its 
Committees and Directors and the same has been approved and 
adopted by the Board. The details of Board Evaluation forms part of 
the Boards’ Report.

Remuneration Policy for Board and Senior 
Management
The Board has approved the Remuneration Policy for Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) and all other employees of the 
Company. The same is available on https://www.tatametaliks.com/
static-files/pdf/policies/TML-NRC-policy.pdf. Details of remuneration 
for Directors in Financial Year 2020-21 are provided in Table C below.

Table C: Shares held and cash compensation paid / payable to Directors during FY 2020-21 are as follows:
(` lakh)

Name
Fixed Salary

Commission Sitting Fees Total 
Compensation

Equity Shares  
held (Nos.)Basic Perquisite/ 

Allowance
Total Fixed 

Salary

Non-Executive, Non-Independent Directors
Mr. Koushik Chatterjee – – – – – – –
Mr. Sanjiv Paul – – – – – – –
Ms. Samita Shah – – – – – – –
Independent Directors
Mr. Krishnava Dutt – – – 13.45 2.80 16.25 –
Dr. Pingali Venugopal – – – 14.10 3.20 17.30 –
Dr. Rupali Basu – – – 11.05 2.80 13.85 –
Mr. Amit Ghosh – – – 11.40 3.60 15.00 –
Executive Director
Mr. Sandeep Kumar 37.59 74.24 111.83 51.05 – 162.88 –

Notes:
1)  In line with the internal guidelines of the Company, no 

payment is made towards sitting fees and commission to the 
Non-Executive Directors of the Company who are in full time 
employment in any other Tata Company. Hence, the actual 
total amount of commission paid to Independent Directors 
is `50 lakhs. Commission considered in Accounts is based on 
estimation. 

2)  Performance linked bonus payable to Managing Director 
and Commission to Independent Directors have been 
recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board at 
their respective meetings on April 14, 2021 and will be paid 
during the financial year 2021-22. Executive Director(s) is 
/ are appointed by resolutions passed by the Board and 
subsequently the Members of the Company. The resolutions 
cover all broad terms and conditions of such appointment(s).

3)  Your Company does not enter into any separate Service 
Contract with those elevated to the Board from the 
management or other group / associate companies. 
Appointment letters are issued to IDs, incorporating their 
roles, duties, responsibilities etc., after they are appointed at an 
AGM. The Managing Director is not eligible for payment of any 
severance fees and the contract may be terminated by either 
party giving the other party six months’ notice or the Company 
paying six months’ remuneration in lieu thereof.

4)  The Company does not have any stock options plan. 
Accordingly, none of our Directors hold stock options as on 
March 31, 2021.

Board Meetings
Scheduling and selection of agenda items for Board 
Meetings
Tentative dates of Board Meetings for the ensuing financial year are 
decided in advance and communicated to the Board Members. The 
information as required under Regulation 17(7) read with Schedule 
II Part A of the Listing Regulations, as amended, is made available to 
the Board. The agenda and explanatory notes are sent to the Board in 
advance. All agenda papers for the Board and Committee meetings 
are disseminated electronically, by uploading them on a secured 
online application. The Board periodically reviews compliance health 
of all laws applicable to the Company.

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly 
financial results and other items on the agenda. Additional meetings 
are held, when necessary. Committees of the Board usually meet the 
day before or on the day of the formal Board meeting, or whenever 
the need arises for transacting business. The recommendations of 
Committees are placed before the Board for necessary approval. The 
Chairpersons of Board Committees brief the Board on all important 
matters discussed and decided at their respective Committee 
meetings. Chairpersons of all Committee were present at the last 
AGM held on Monday, September 07, 2020.
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To improve our governance practices, we have enabled our Directors 
to have free flow of information of all Committees, irrespective 
of their membership. This is aimed to improve on our culture of 
informed decision-making. The Company complies with the revised 
Secretarial Standards (SS-I) on the Board Meetings as prescribed by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

The Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer attend all Board 
and Committee Meetings. Functional head(s) attend meetings as 
Invitees, as and when necessary to provide necessary clarifications/ 
updates for holistic decision making. All important decisions taken 
at Board Meetings are communicated to concerned officials and 
departments and reviewed by the Management regularly. An Action 
Taken Report is prepared and the Board is updated at subsequent 
meetings.

During the year under review, 08 (eight) Board Meetings were held, 
on June 10, 2020, July 31,2020, October 19, 2020, November 11, 
2020, November 13, 2020, December 22, 2020, January 19, 2021 and 
February 24, 2021. The interval between two consecutive meetings 
did not exceed 120 days. The necessary quorum was present at all 
meetings. 

Table D: Attendance details of Directors for the year ended 
March 31, 2021 are given below:

Name of the Director Category

No. of 
Meetings held 

during the 
tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Koushik Chatterjee NED 8 8
Mr. Sandeep Kumar ED 8 8
Mr. Sanjiv Paul NED 8 8
Mr. Krishnava Dutt ID 8 8
Dr. Pingali Venugopal ID 8 8
Ms. Samita Shah NED 8 7
Dr. Rupali Basu ID 8 8
Mr. Amit Ghosh ID 8 8

NED – Non-Executive Director; ID – Independent Director; ED – 
Executive Director

All Directors were present at the last AGM of the Company held on 
Monday, September 07, 2020.

Due to the exceptional circumstances caused by the COVID-19 
pandemic and consequent relaxations granted by MCA and SEBI, all 
meetings in FY 2020-21 were held through Video Conferencing (‘VC’).

Meeting of the Independent Directors
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8) read with Schedule IV of 
the Act and Regulations 25(3) & 25(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a 
Meeting of the IDs was held on March 15, 2021 without the presence 
of Non-Independent Directors and Members of the Management. 
IDs reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent Directors 
and the Board of Directors as a whole and also the performance of 
the Chairman of the Board. They reviewed, inter-alia, performance of 
the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole including 
the Chairman after taking into account the views of Executive and 

Non-Executive Directors and discussed aspects relating to the 
quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between 
the Company, the Management and the Board. The feedback of 
the IDs was shared with the NRC. In addition to the evaluation 
parameters, the IDs arrived at unanimous consensus to acknowledge 
the continued leadership role displayed by the Chairman, the Board 
and the management in upholding global best practices and highest 
standards of Corporate Governance in letter and spirit. 

Board Committees 
As on March 31, 2021, the Board has seven (7) Committees, of 
which four (4) are statutory Committees and rest are non-statutory 
Committees. The statutory Committees have been constituted as per 
the provisions prescribed under the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, 
whereas the non-statutory Committees comprise an optimum 
combination of Independent and Non-Independent Directors. The 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acts as Secretary to each 
Committee. Each Committee is constituted with the specific terms of 
reference to focus on pre-defined matters. The constitution, terms of 
reference and other details of the various Committees are detailed 
hereunder:

The Board has constituted the following committees:

• Audit Committee;

• Nomination & Remuneration Committee;

• Stakeholders Relationship Committee;

• Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;

• Risk Management Committee;

• Safety, Health & Environment Committee

• Committee of Board 

Audit Committee
The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and 
provide an effective supervision of the Management’s financial 
reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with 
the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial 
reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out in the 
financial reporting process by the Management, the internal auditor, 
the statutory auditor, secretarial auditor and cost auditor, and notes 
the processes and safeguards employed by each of them. It also 
seeks appropriate clarification(s) from Statutory Auditors and the 
Management to help the Committee’s decision-making process, as 
and when required. The internal auditor reports functionally to the 
Audit Committee. The Committee further reviews the process and 
controls including compliance with laws, Tata Code of Conduct and 
Tata Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code for 
Corporate Disclosure Practices, Whistle Blower Policies and related 
cases thereto, functioning of the Prevention of Sexual Harassment at 
Workplace Policy, and guidelines and internal controls. 

It is constituted in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of 
the Act and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Terms 
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of Reference (ToR) of the Committee, aligned with the provisions of 
the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, are as under:

A.  Review and recommend the quarterly and annual financial 
results of the Company;

B. Review quarterly reports of the Internal Auditor;

C.  Review weaknesses in internal controls reported by Internal and 
Statutory Auditors; and

D.  To consider, review and approve the transactions entered into 
with Related Parties.

Committee members are financially literate and have significant 
exposure in areas of finance, taxation, legal and audit. There was no 
instance, during the financial year where the Board has not accepted 
any recommendation of the Committee.

During the year under review, 6 (Six) meetings were held on June 10, 
2020, July 31, 2020, October 19, 2020, November 13, 2021, January 
19, 2021 and March 31, 2021 and requisite quorum was present at all 
these meetings. All the decisions at the Audit Committee meetings 
were taken unanimously.

Table E: The composition of the Committee and the 
attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 
31, 2021 are given below:

Name of the Members Category

No. of 
Meetings held 

during the 
tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Krishnava Dutt ID, Chairman 6 6
Dr. Pingali Venugopal ID 6 6
Ms. Samita Shah NED 6 5
Mr. Amit Ghosh ID 6 6

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The purpose of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(‘NRC’) is to oversee the Company’s nomination process including 
succession planning for the senior management and the Board 
and specifically to assist the Board by identifying, screening and 
reviewing individuals qualified to serve as EDs, NEDs and IDs 
consistent with the criteria as stated by the Board in its Policy on 
Appointment and Removal of Directors.

The Committee is constituted in compliance with the provisions 
of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the Committee, aligned 
with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, are as 
under:

A.  Selecting eligible candidates for Board membership and 
recommending the same to the Board of Directors;

B.  Oversight of the Company’s nomination process for senior 
management;

C.  Formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of the Board as 
a whole, its Committees and individual Directors;

D.  Recommend annual increment, performance linked 
bonus,etc., payable to the Managing Director within the salary 
scale,approved by Members; and

E.  Recommend annual increment(s) etc., payable to the Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company.

The NRC also assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities 
relating to compensation of the Company’s EDs and Senior 
Management. The Committee follows a well defined Remuneration 
Policy for Directors, KMPs and all other employees of the Company 
and the same is available on the Company’s website at https://www.
tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/TML-NRC-policy.pdf

The Committee has the overall responsibility of approving and 
evaluating the compensation plans, policies and programmes for 
Executive Directors and the Senior Management. The Committee 
reviews and recommends to the Board for its approval, the base 
salary, incentives/ commission, other benefits, compensation or 
arrangements and executive employment agreements for the EDs.
The criteria for paying commission to the Non-Executive Directors 
of the Company is determined by the NRC. However, as per internal 
guidelines, commission is paid only to Independent Directors and no 
Commission is paid to Non-Independent Non Executive Directors. 
NRC recommends the amount of Commission payable to the NEDs / 
IDs, subject to the approval of the Members.

During the year under review, 2 (two) meetings were held on June 10, 
2020 and December 22, 2020 and requisite quorum was present at 
both the meetings.

Table F: The composition of the Committee and the 
attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 
31, 2021 are given below:

Name of the Members Category

No. of 
Meetings held 

during the 
tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Dr. Pingali Venugopal ID, Chairman 2 2
Mr. Koushik Chatterjee NED 2 2
Mr. Krishnava Dutt ID 2 2

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
The purpose of the Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) 
Committee is to formulate and recommend to the Board, a 
CSR Policy, which shall indicate the initiatives to be undertaken 
by the Company, recommend the amount of expenditure the 
Company should incur on CSR activities and to monitor from time 
to time the CSR activities and Policy of the Company. The CSR 
Committee provides guidance in formulation of CSR strategy and 
its implementation. It also reviews practices and principles to foster 
sustainable growth of the Company by creating values consistent 
with long-term preservation and enhancement of financial, 
manufacturing, natural, social, intellectual and human capital. The 
CSR policy is available at: https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/
pdf/policies/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Accountability-Policy.
pdf

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the Committee are aligned with the 
provisions of the Act are as under:

A.  Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy;
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B.  Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR 
activities;

C.  Review performance of the Company in the areas of CSR; and

D. Monitor CSR Policy from time to time.

During the year under review, 3 (three) meetings were held on April 
03,2020, October 06, 2020 and December 16, 2020. The requisite 
quorum was present for all the meetings.

Table G: The composition of the Committee and the 
attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 
31, 2021 are given below:

Name of the Members Category

No. of 
Meetings held 

during the 
tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Dr. Rupali Basu ID,Chairperson 3 3
Dr. Pingali Venugopal ID 3 3
Mr. Sanjiv Paul NED 3 2
Ms. Samita Shah NED 3 2
Mr. Sandeep Kumar ED 3 3

Risk Management Committee
SEBI, vide a gazette notification dated 06th May, 2021 notified 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second 
Amendment) Regulations, 2021. Pursuant to this amendment top 
1000 listed entities based on market capitalisation requires a Risk 
Management Committee, hence applicable to us. However, the 
Company voluntarily had a duly constituted Risk Management 
Committee prior to this amendment. The Company has constituted 
a Risk Management Committee (‘RMC’) in compliance with the 
provisions of Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing Regulations for 
framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management policy 
of the Company. The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its 
oversight responsibility with respect to Enterprise Risk Management 
(‘ERM’). The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the Committee are aligned 
with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, they 
are: 

• To frame and recommend to the Board a Risk Management 
Policy; 

• To monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of risk management 
framework of the Company; and 

• To oversee implementation of risk mitigation plans

The Company has an effective risk management framework to 
monitor, identify, evaluate and manage enterprise risks. It oversees 
key risks, including strategic, financial, operational, IT (including 
cyber security) and compliance risks, in line with a Group-level 
framework adopted by its holding Company.

During the year under review, 2(two) meetings were held on July 
23, 2020 and January 07, 2021. The requisite quorum was present for 
both meetings.

Table H: The composition of the Committee and the 
attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 
31, 2021 are given below:

Name of the Members Category

No. of 
Meetings held 

during the 
tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Krishnava Dutt ID,Chairman 2 2
Mr. Amit Ghosh ID 2 2
Mr. Sanjiv Paul NED 2 2
Ms. Samita Shah NED 2 2
Mr. Sandeep Kumar ED 2 2
Mr. Subra Sengupta MoM 2 2

MoM: Member of Management

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (‘SRC’) considers and 
resolves the grievances of our shareholders, including complaints 
relating to non-receipt of annual report, transfer and transmission 
of securities, non-receipt of dividends, issue of new/duplicate 
certificates, general meetings and such other grievances as may be 
raised by the security holders from time to time. The Committee is 
constituted in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Act and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The broad 
function of the committee as per the TOR are as under: 

• To review the redressal mechanism of grievances of security 
holders;

• To consider and resolve the investor complaints relating to 
transfer of shares, non-receipt of duplicate certificate, non-
receipt of annual report and non-receipt of declared dividends. 

•  To resolve such other grievances as may be raised by the security 
holders from time to time.

During the year under review, 1 (one) meeting of SRC was held 
on September 03, 2020. The requisite quorum was present at the 
meeting.

Table I: The composition of the Committee and the 
attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 
31, 2021 are given below:

Name of the Members Category

No. of 
Meetings held 

during the 
tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Amit Ghosh ID, Chairman 1 1
Dr. Pingali Venugopal ID 1 1
Mr. Sanjiv Paul NED 1 1
Mr. Sandeep Kumar ED 1 1
Dr. Rupali Basu ID 1 1

In terms of Regulation 6 and Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, 
the Board has appointed Mr. Avishek Ghosh, Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer as the Compliance Officer of the Company, details 
of whom are given below:
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Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer: 
Mr. Avishek Ghosh, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Membership No. – 44347
Tata Centre, 10th Floor, 43, J. L. Nehru Road, Kolkata – 700071. 
Phone – 91–33–66134244. 
Fax – +91–33–22884372. 
Email – avishek.ghosh@tatametaliks.co.in

The details of investor complaints received and resolved during the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 are given in Table J below. The 
complaints relate to non-receipt of annual report, dividend, share 
transfers and other investor grievances.

Table J: Details of investor complaints received and resolved 
during the year ended March 31, 2021:

Opening as on April 1, 2020 Nil
Received during the year 100
Resolved during the year 100
Closing as on March 31, 2021 Nil

Safety, Health and Environment Committee
The Safety, Health and Environment Committee (‘SHE Committee’) 
of the Board oversees the policies relating to Safety, Health and 
Environment and their implementation. The broad functions of the 
committee are as per the approved Terms of Reference (ToR) are: 

• Review operational performance, anticipate potential issues and 
provide support in setting direction for improvements;

• Reduce carbon emissions per tonne of hot metal / DI Pipe 
produced; and 

• Functional health, safety and environmental team would provide 
a coordinated and effective specialist advisory support to the 
said Committee

The Company has a strong commitment to Safety. Accordingly, the 
SHE Committee oversees and monitors the performance on Safety, 

Health and Environment and their implementation to enhance 
the safety culture of the Company and ensures it cascades across 
stakeholders.

During the year under review, 3 (three) meetings were held on 
July 24, 2020, October 05, 2020 and January 08, 2021. The requisite 
quorum was present for all meetings.

Table K: The composition of the Committee and the 
attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 
31, 2021 are given below:

Name of the Members Category

No. of
Meetings held

during the 
tenure

No. of
Meetings
attended

Mr. Sanjiv Paul NED, Chairman 3 3
Mr. Sandeep Kumar ED 3 3
Dr. Rupali Basu ID 3 3

Committee of Board :
The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on January 19, 2021, 
constituted this Committee of Board (“CoB”) to consider and 
approve Inter Corporate Loans (ICLs) and to frame the guardrail or 
ring fencing for such ICLs.

During the year 1 (one) meeting was held on March 22, 2021

Table L : The composition of the Committee and the 
attendance details of the Members for the year ended March 
31, 2021 are given below:

Name of the Member Category

No. of
Meetings held

during the
tenure

No. of
Meetings
attended

Mr. Amit Ghosh ID, Chairman 1 100
Ms. Samita Shah NED 1 100
Mr. Sandeep Kumar ED 1 -

General Body Meetings
Table M: Location and time, where last three AGMs were held:

Financial Year 
Ended Date & time Venue Special Resolution(s) Passed

March 31, 2018 Monday, July 02, 2018 at 3:00 
p.m.

Kala Mandir, 48 Shakespeare 
Sarani, Kolkata - 700017

NIL

March 31, 2019 Tuesday, August 27, 2019 at 
11:00 a.m.

Kala Mandir, 48 Shakespeare 
Sarani, Kolkata - 700017

1.  Re-appointment of Mr. Krishnava Dutt (DIN: 02792753) as an 
Independent Director

2.  Re-appointment of Dr. Pingali Venugopal (05166520) as an 
Independent Director

March 31, 2020 Monday, September 07, 2020 at 
3:00 p.m.

The Meeting was held through 
two-way video-conferencing

NIL
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None of the businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing 
AGM requires passing of a Special Resolution by way of Postal Ballot.

No Special Resolution requiring a Postal Ballot was passed last year.

Special Resolutions proposed to be conducted through postal 
ballot: 
None of the businesses proposed to be passed at the ensuing AGM 
require passing of a special resolution through Postal Ballot. 

Table N: Annual General Meeting 2021:

Day and Date Monday, August 02, 2021
Time 3:00 p.m. IST
Venue In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) has vide its 
circular dated May 5, 2020 read with Circulars dated 
April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, and January 13, 2021 
(collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and SEBI 
Circular dated May 12, 2020 and January 15, 2021 
(collectively referred to as ‘SEBI Circulars’) permitted 
the holding of the Annual General Meeting through 
video-conferencing / other audio visual means 
(‘VC / OAVM’), without the physical presence of 
the Members at a common venue. In compliance 
with the provisions of the Act, MCA Circulars and 
SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being 
held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue of 
the AGM shall be Tata Centre, 43, J. L. Nehru Road, 
Kolkata-700071

Financial Year April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021
Book Closure Dates From July 24, 2021 to August 02, 2021, both dates 

inclusive. 
Dividend Payment 
Date

On and from August 06, 2021, subject to approval of 
the Shareholders at the ensuing AGM

Communication to the Shareholders
Communication to Members is made primarily through public 
disclosures. Quarterly/ Half-yearly and Annual financial results are 
published in Business Standard (English) and Aajkaal (Bengali) in 
compliance with Regulation 47 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.The 
financial results along with the press releases are also made available 
on the Company’s website https://www.tatametaliks.com. 

Details of conference calls/meetings on financials / quarterly results 
held with analysts, if any, and their transcripts are published on the 
website https://www.tatametaliks.com/investors/concall-transcript.
aspx. 

All disclosures as required under the SEBI Listing Regulations are 
made through the respective Stock Exchanges where the securities 
of the Company are listed. They are also made available on the 
Company’s website at https://www.tatametaliks.com/investors/
stock-exchange-releases.aspx. 

The Company’s website is a comprehensive repository on it’s 
leadership, management, vision, mission, values, policies, corporate 
governance, sustainability, investor relations, products and 
processes and other updates. The section on ‘Investors’ aims to 
inform the Shareholders, by giving financial details, stock exchange 
compliances, shareholding patterns, current credit ratings, 

information relating to Stock Exchanges, details of Registrars & 
Transfer Agent and other. Investors can also submit their queries by 
clicking on ‘investor query’ tab. The section on ‘Media’ includes all 
major press releases, newsletters, media covered, amongst others.

Disclosure to Shareholders 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company: 
L27310WB1990PLC050000

Disclosures regarding the re-appointment of Directors
In terms of relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as 
amended, Mr. Sanjiv Paul (DIN: 00086974) is liable to retire by 
rotation at the ensuing AGM and is eligible for re-appointment. The 
Board recommends the above re-appointment for approval of the 
Shareholders at the ensuing AGM.

The detailed profile of Mr. Paul and particulars of his experience, skills 
or attributes that qualify him for Board Membership is provided in 
the Notice convening the AGM.

General Information for Shareholders
Tentative Financial Calendar:
Financial Year 2021-22

1st quarter result July, 2021
2nd quarter & half-yearly result October, 2021
3rd quarter result January, 2022
4th quarter & annual result April, 2022

Table O: Names and Addresses of the Stock Exchanges and 
Stock Codes

Stock Exchanges ISIN Stock Code

BSE Limited (‘BSE’)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001,
Maharashtra, India

INE056C01010 513434

National Stock Exchange of India  
Limited (‘NSE’) Exchange Plaza,  
5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, G Block,  
Bandra-Kurla Complex,  
Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India

INE056C01010 TATAMETALI

Listing on Stock Exchanges 
As on March 31, 2021, the Company has Equity shares listed on BSE 
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The annual 
Listing fees for FY2020-21 was paid within the due date. The Listing 
fees for FY2021-22 will be paid within due date to the respective 
stock exchanges.

Credit Rating

Rating Agency Type of Credit Rating Credit Rating

ICRA Short term facilities [ICRA] A1+
Long term facilities [ICRA] AA-

There has been no revision in the ratings. Further details on credit 
rating are provided in the Board’s Report. The above details are also 
available on our website at https://www.tatametaliks.com/investors/
credit-ratings.aspx
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Market Information
Table P: Market Price Data- High, Low (based on daily closing price) and volume (no. of shares traded) during each month in 
Financial Year2020-21 of Fully Paid Shares, on BSE and NSE:

Month
BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited

High(`) Low (`)
Volume (No. of 
shares traded) High (`) Low (`)

Volume (No. of 
shares traded)

April- 20 478.15 328.35 1,29,969  479.15 325.20 6,65,143
May-20 461.80 405.00 1,96,271 467.95 408.50 4,37,006
June-20 546.40 422.50 1,04,906 545.90 420.00 12,68,668
July-20 535.95 473.25 97,031 536.05 478.65 9,80,514
August-20 587.70 462.00 1,49,831 588.35 471.10 16,46,210
September-20 562.00 480.00 73,538 562.60 480.00 5,77,984
October-20 598.10 487.75 1,39,319 598.40 487.65 22,81,472
November-20 597.60 511.10 1,43,129 598.25 511.00 13,06,601
December-20 663.25 540.00 3,97,528 662.90 540.00 51,54,066
January-21 935.00 613.00 15,24,215 934.00 611.00 1,71,67,811
February-21 819.95 680.65 15,20,861 819.00 665.20 55,93,284
March-21 843.60 695.00 20,07,233 843.00 694.00 67,02,937

Share price performance as compared to BSE Sensex & NIFTY 50 for year ended March 31, 2021
The Company’s shares are regularly traded on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, as is seen from the volume of shares 
indicated in the Table containing Market Information.

Month
Closing Price of 

Equity Shares at 
BSE

BSE SENSEX
Closing Price of 

Equity Shares at 
NSE

NIFTY

April- 20 473.10 33,717.62 470.75 9,859.90
May-20 417.40 32,424.10 417.35 9,580.30
June-20 481.85 34,915.80 482.00 10,302.10
July-20 492.75 37,606.89 491.75 11,073.45
August-20 546.80 38,628.29 550.90 11,387.50
September-20 519.35 38,067.93 520.50 11,247.55
October-20 514.55 39,614.07 514.75 11,642.40
November-20 537.70 44,149.72 538.95 12,968.95
December-20 609.05 47,751.33 608.45 13,981.75
January-21 722.05 46,285.77 721.75 13,634.60
February-21 767.70 49,099.99 767.10 14,529.15
March-21 814.15 49,509.15 816.00 14,690.70

Tata Metaliks on BSE BSE SENSEX
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Registrar and Transfer Agent and Share Transfer Process 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
correspond with the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) 
quoting their Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID at the following address:-

R & D Infotech Pvt. Ltd. 
15C, Ground Floor, Naresh Mitra Sarani (Beltala Road), Kolkata - 
700026, West Bengal India
Phone: +91-33-24192641/42, Telefax: +91-33-24741657,
E-mail: info@rdinfotech.net; tml@rdinfotech.in; rdinfotech@yahoo.com

Members holding shares in electronic form should address their 
correspondences, except those relating to dividend, to their 
respective Depository Participants (DPs). The status on complaints 
and share transfers are reported to the Board.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, 
securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialised form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case 
of request received for transmission or transposition and relodged 
transfers of securities. Further, SEBI vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/
MIRSD/RTAMB/CIR/P/2020/236 dated December 2, 2020 had fixed 
March 31, 2021 as the cut-off date for re-lodgement of transfer deeds 
and the shares that are re-lodged for transfer shall be issued only in 
demat mode. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with 
physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members 
holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting 
their holdings to dematerialised form.

Share transactions in electronic form can be effected in a much 
simpler and faster manner. After a confirmation of a sale / purchase 
transaction from the broker, Members should approach the DP with 
a request to debit or credit the account for the transaction. The DP 
will immediately arrange to complete the transaction by updating 

the account. There is no need for a separate communication to the 
Company to register these share transfers.

Members should communicate with Mr. Ratan Mishra, Director, R & D 
Infotech Pvt. Ltd., RTA, at the details mentioned earlier, quoting their 
folio number or DP ID and Client ID number, for any queries to their 
securities.

In terms of Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
certificates on half-yearly basis, have been issued by a Practicing 
Company Secretary with respect to due compliances of share transfer 
formalities etc. by the Company.

Nomination Facility
If any Member, holding shares in physical form, wishes to appoint or 
change nominee for their shareholding(s) in the Company, he/ she 
may submit Form SH-13/ SH-14 as the case may be to the Company’s 
RTA as required under Section 72 of the Act. 

Members holding shares in electronic form should contact their 
respective DPs avail this facility.

Shares held in Electronic Form
Members holding shares in electronic form may please note that 
instructions regarding change of address, bank details, email ids, 
nomination and power of attorney should be given directly to their 
concerned DPs.

Shares held in Physical Form
Members holding shares in physical form may please note that 
instructions regarding change of address, bank details, email ids, 
nomination and power of attorney should be given directly to the 
Company’s RTA.

Table Q: Distribution of Equity shareholding as on March 31, 2021

Share Holding Total No. of 
Shareholders % to total holders Total No. of Shares % to total capital as 

on March 31

1-500 62,486 97.43% 45,50,468 14.41%
501-1000 876 1.37% 6,88,899 2.18%
1001-10000 698 1.09% 17,86,865 5.66%
10001-50000 56 0.09% 11,74,296 3.72%
50001 and above 15 0.02% 2,33,76,972 74.03%
Total 64,131 100.00% 3,15,77,500 100.00%

Categories of shareholders as on March 31, 2021

Shareholders Total No. of 
Shareholders % to total holders Total No. of Shares % to total capital 

Promoters Holding 1 0.00% 1,89,57,090 60.03%
UTI / Mutual Fund / Banks 41 0.06% 41,70,243 13.21%
Insurance Companies 1 0.00% 372 0.00%
FIs (Trust) 5 0.01% 2,364 0.01%
Corporate Bodies 665 1.04% 8,30,624 2.63%
Resident Individuals 62,472 97.41% 68,86,170 21.81%
State Government-WBIDC 1 0.00% 2,50,000 0.79%
FIIs / NRIs / OCBs 945 1.47% 4,80,637 1.52%
Total 64,131 100.00% 3,15,77,500 100.00%
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Top 10 shareholders as on March 31, 2021

Name of shareholders Total No. of Shares % to total capital 

TATA STEEL LIMITED 1,89,57,090 60.03%
HDFC SMALL CAP FUND 24,17,395 7.66%
ADITYA BIRLA SUN LIFE TRUSTEE PRIVATE LIMITED A/C ADITYA BIRLA SUN LIFE SMALL CAP FUND 5,16,205 1.63%
WEST BENGAL INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD 2,50,000 0.79%
PGIM INDIA TRUSTEES PRIVATE LIMITED A/C PGIM INDIA FLEXI CAP FUND 1,90,000 0.60%
ICICI PRUDENTIAL SMALLCAP FUND 1,89,796 0.60%
INVESCO TRUSTEE PRIVATE LIMITED-A/C INVESCO INDIA SMALLCAP FUND 1,50,957 0.48%
HDFC TRUSTEE CO LTD A/C HDFC RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND-EQUITY PLAN 1,29,900 0.41%
NIRMAL BHANWARLAL JAIN 1,15,000 0.36%
SUNDARAM MUTUAL FUND A/C SUNDARAM EQUITY FUND 1,13,324 0.36%
EMERGING MARKETS CORE EQUITY PORTFOLIO (THE PORTFOLIO) OF DFA INVESTMENT DIMENSIONS GROUP 
INC. (DFAIDG)

1,01,490 0.32%

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity
The Company’s shares are traded compulsorily in electronic form. 
We have established connectivity with both the depositories in 
India – National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’). The International 
Securities Identification Number (‘ISIN’) allotted to the Company’s 
Share under the Depository System is INE056C01010.

As on March 31, 2021, a total of 3,03,83,918 shares of the Company 
representing 96.22% of total shares are in dematerialised form.

Designated E-mail Address for Investor Services
In compliance with Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 
designated e-mail address for investors’ services i.e.  
investors@tatametaliks.co.in is duly provided on the website of the 
Company for the benefit of our Members.

Updation of bank details for remittance of dividend/cash 
benefits in electronic form
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its Circular No. 
CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 dated March 21, 2013 (Circular) had ordered 
the listed companies, RTAs, Depositories and Stock Exchanges to 
use various electronic payment modes such as ECS [LECS (Local 
ECS) / RECS (Regional ECS) / NECS (National ECS)] and NEFT, among 
others, which were approved by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), for 
distributing dividends and other cash benefits to the Members.

The Circular further states that if the bank details such as MICR 
(Magnetic Ink Character Recognition), IFSC (Indian Financial System 
Code) etc., that are required for making electronic payment are not 
available or the electronic payment instructions have failed or have 
been rejected by the bank, companies or their RTA may use physical 
payment instruments for making cash payments to the investors.

As per Regulation 12 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, where it is 
not possible to use electronic mode of payment, ‘payable-at-par’ 
warrants or cheques may be issued for payment of dividend. 
Members should also note that payment of dividend and other cash 
benefits through electronic mode has many advantages such as 
prompt credit, elimination of fraudulent encashment / delay in transit 
and more. They are requested to opt for any of the above mentioned 
electronic modes of payment of dividend and other cash benefits 
and update their bank details:

• In case of holdings in dematerialised form, by contacting their 
DP and giving suitable instructions to update the bank details in 
their demat account.

• In case of holdings in physical form, by informing the Company’s 
RTA, through a signed request letter with details such as Folio 
No(s), Name and Branch of the Bank in which they wish to receive 
the dividend, the Bank Account No. allotted by their respective 
banks after implementation of Core Banking Solutions (CBS), the 
9 digit MICR Code No. and the 11 digit IFSC Code. This request 
letter should be supported by a cancelled cheque bearing the 
name of the first holder.

Shareholders to note that those who are unable to receive the 
dividend directly in their bank accounts through Electronic Clearing 
Service or any other electronic means, due to non-registration of the 
Electronic Bank Mandate, the Company shall dispatch the dividend 
warrant / Bankers’ cheque / demand draft to such Members, upon 
normalisation of postal services and other activities that have been 
disrupted due to outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.

Investor Awareness
We have provided subscription facilities to our investors for investors’ 
alerts regarding analyst meets, quarterly and annual financial results, 
investor conference call, press release, presentation etc. We also 
encourage our investors to visit the Company’s website regularly 
for recent updates and to write to us regarding their rights and 
shareholdings or any other query.

Your Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs as on March 31, 2021. 
Your Company does not have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs.

Legal proceedings
There are no legal proceedings pending against the Company in 
share related matter.

Commodity Price Risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging 
activities
With respect to the commodity price, currency risk etc., please refer 
Management Discussion & Analysis Report, sections of Integrated 
Report, Financial Statements and notes therein.
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Compliance with discretionary requirements 
All mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations have 
been complied with by the Company. The status of compliance with 
the discretionary requirements, as stated under Part E of Schedule II 
to the SEBI Listing Regulations are as under:

Maintenance of Chairman’s office: The Chairman has a separate office 
which is not maintained by the Company. 

Shareholder Rights: The half-yearly financial performance of the 
Company is made available on the Company’s website at https://
www.tatametaliks.com/investors/financial-releases.aspx for all 
shareholders.

Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report: The Auditors have provided 
an unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements of the 
Company. 

Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor reports directly to 
the Audit Committee.

Equity shares in the suspense account
In accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34(3) and Part F of 
Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations, details of equity shares in 
the suspense account are as follows:

Particulars No. Of equity 
shares 

No. Of equity 
shareholders

Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account 
lying as on April 01, 2020

54 5700

Shareholders who approached the 
Company for transfer of shares from 
suspense account during the year

- -

Shareholders to whom shares were 
transferred from the suspense account 
during the year

- -

Shareholders whose shares are transferred 
to the demat account of the IEPF Authority 
as per Section 124 of the Act

- -

Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account 
lying as on March 31, 2021

54 5700

The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of 
such shares claims the shares

Transfer of unclaimed / unpaid amounts to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund
As per Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘IEPF Rules’), dividend, if not claimed for a 
consecutive period of 7 years from the date of transfer to Unpaid 
Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (‘IEPF’).

Further, all shares in respect of which dividend has remained 
unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more from the date of 
transfer to unpaid dividend account shall also be transferred to IEPF 
Authority. The said requirement does not apply to shares in respect 
of which there is a specific order of Court, Tribunal or Statutory 
Authority, restraining any transfer of the shares. Details of unclaimed 
dividends and Members, whose shares are liable to be transferred to 
the IEPF Authority, are uploaded on the Company’s website.

In view of the aforesaid provisions, we report that the Company 
resumed declaring dividend from FY 2015-16 onwards. Accordingly, 
the unpaid dividend accruing from FY 2015-16 is due for deposit 
to IEPF from FY 2022-23 onwards. Hence, no dividend is due to be 
transferred to IEPF during the year under review.

Secretarial Audit 
The Board of Directors appointed P V Subramanian, (CoP No.: 2077), 
Practising Company Secretary, to conduct secretarial audit of its 
records and documents for the Financial Year 2020-21. The secretarial 
audit report confirms that the Company has complied with all 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and all regulations 
and guidelines of SEBI as applicable to the Company. The Secretarial 
Audit Report forms part of the Board’s Report.

Green Initiative
As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company welcomes and 
supports the ‘Green Initiative’ undertaken by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, enabling electronic delivery 
of documents including the Annual Report, quarterly and half-yearly 
results, amongst others, to Shareholders at their e-mail address 
previously registered with the DPs and RTA.

Location of the Plant 
Village Maheshpur PO: Samraipur, Gokulpur, Kharagpur, Paschim 
Midnapur Pincode - 721301, West Bengal. No. 9073331142 Email:  
tml@tatametaliks.co.in

Address for correspondence 
Tata Metaliks Limited Tata Centre, 10th Floor, 43, J. L. Nehru Road, 
Kolkata – 700071. Phone: +91-33-6613-4200 Fax: +91-33-2288 4372 
Email: investors@tatametaliks.co.in

Details of fees paid to the Statutory Auditors: 
Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP (Firm Registration 
Number: 304026E / E-00009) were appointed as Statutory Auditors 
of the Company at the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
for a term of 5 (five) years. The particulars of payment of Statutory 
Auditors’ fees, is given below: 

Details Amount (`) in lakhs

Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses
(i) As auditors (Statutory Audit) 24.50
(ii) For other services (including tax audit fees) 29.00
(iii) Out-of-pocket expenses 1.26
Total 54.76
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Details of corporate policies:

Particulars Website Details/Links

Dividend Distribution Policy https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/dividend-distribution-policy.pdf
Composition and Profile of the Board of 
Directors

https://www.tatametaliks.com/corporate/board-of-directors.aspx

Terms and conditions of appointment of 
Independent Directors

https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/independentDirectors.pdf

Policy on Appointment and Removal of 
Directors

https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/TML-NRC-policy.pdf

Familiarization Programme for Independent 
Directors

https://www.tatametaliks.com/investors/details-of-familiarisation-programme-for-ids.aspx

Remuneration Policy of Directors, KMPs & 
Other Employees

https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/TML-NRC-policy.pdf

Tata Code of Conduct https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/TCOC.pdf
Criteria for Making Payments to Non-
Executive Directors

https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/TML-NRC-policy.pdf

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy https://www.tatametaliks.com/staticfiles/pdf/sustainability/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-
Accountability-Policy.pdf

Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/TCOC.pdf
Policy on Related Party Transactions https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/rpt-policy.pdf
Policy on Determining Material Subsidiary https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/policy-on-material-subsidiary.pdf
Whistle Blower Policy https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/whistleblower-policy.pdf
Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/corporate-disclosure-practice.pdf
Policy on Determination of Materiality for 
Disclosure

https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/policy-on-determination-materiality.pdf

Document Retention and Archival Policy https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/policy-on-retention-archival.pdf
Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) at 
Workplace Policy

https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/Prevention-of-Sexual-Harassment-at-workplace-
Policy.pdf

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report https://www.tatametaliks.com/investors/stock-exchange-releases.aspx

Details of non-compliance
The Company has complied and disclosed all mandatory corporate 
governance requirements as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 
and sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations 
relating to disclosure on the website of the Company. The Company 
has complied with all applicable rules and regulations as prescribed 
by the Stock Exchanges, Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(‘SEBI’) or any statutory authority relating to capital markets 
during the last 3 (three) years. There has been no instance of 
non-compliance with any legal requirements particularly with any 
requirement of the Corporate Governance Report, and no penalties 
and / or strictures have been imposed on the Company in this regard 
during the year under review. During FY 2019-20, the Company had 
paid fine to BSE Limited and to the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited for delayed application for listing of equity shares issued 
on preferential basis in March 2019. None of the Company’s listed 
securities are suspended from trading.

Related Party Transactions 
All transactions entered into with related parties as defined under 
the Act and Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, each as 
amended, during the year under review were on an arm’s length 
price basis and in the ordinary course of business. These have been 
approved by the Audit Committee. Certain transactions which were 
repetitive in nature were approved through omnibus route by the 

Audit Committee. The Company has not entered into any materially 
significant related party transaction that may have potential conflict 
with the interests of listed entity at large. The policy on Related Party 
Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors from time to time 
is uploaded on the Company’s website at https://www.tatametaliks.
com/static-files/pdf/policies/rpt-policy.pdf

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company did not have any 
material pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non Executive 
Directors apart from paying Director’s remuneration. Further, the 
Directors have not entered into any contracts with the Company, 
which will be in material conflict with the interest of the Company. 

The Board has received disclosures from KMPs and Members of 
Senior Management confirming that there have been no material, 
financial and commercial transactions with the Company where they 
and / or their relatives have personal interest.

Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries
The Company has formulated the Policy for determining material 
subsidiaries and Policy on consideration and approval of related 
party transactions which are available at: https://www.tatametaliks.
com/static-files/pdf/policies/policy-on-material-subsidiary.pdf and 
https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/rpt-policy.pdf 
respectively. However, the Company does not have any subsidiary 
company.
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Vigil Mechanism 
The Vigil Mechanism approved by the Board provides a formal 
mechanism for all Directors, employees and vendors of the Company 
to approach the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company 
and make protective disclosures regarding the unethical behaviour, 
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of 
Conduct. Under the Policy, in addition, Directors, employees, and 
vendors, may approach the Chief Ethics Counsellor to make any such 
protected disclosure. During the year under review, no person has 
been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Details 
of the Vigil Mechanism are provided in the Board’s Report. The 
Whistle-Blower Policy for Directors and Employees is available on the 
Company’s website at https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/
policies/whistleblower-policy.pdf

Certificates from Practising Company Secretary:
As required under Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V, Part E of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the certificate given by Mr. P.V. Subramanian 
Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of 
corporate governance, is annexed to this report.

As required under Clause 10 (i) of Part C under Schedule V of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Company has received a certificate from 
Mr. P.V. Subramanian, Practicing Company Secretary certifying that 
none of our Directors have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by SEBI or MCA 
or such other statutory authority.

Utilization of funds raised through Preferential Allotment of 
Equity Shares and Convertible Warrants
The funds raised through issue of equity shares post conversion 
of warrants on September 25, 2020 which was earlier issued 

on a preferential basis to Tata Steel Limited in FY 2018-19 were 
immediately utilised for the specified purposes by the Company.

Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
Your Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at 
the workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition 
and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the 
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder.

An Internal Committee (IC) is in place to redress complaints 
received regarding sexual harassment. The Internal Committee is 
reconstituted every 3 years. All employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary, trainees, etc.) are covered under this Policy.

1 No. of complaints pending as on beginning of the 
financial year 

Nil

2 No. of complaints filed during the financial year 1
3 No. of complaints disposed off during the financial year 0
4 No. of complaints pending at the end of financial year 1

Note: There was 1 (one) complaint of sexual harassment in the later 
part of Q4. The investigation has been completed and the matter is 
due for final resolution shortly.

CEO and CFO Certification
In line with Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule II Part B of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 
have given appropriate certification to the Board of Directors.
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P. V. Subramanian 81/8, Regent Estate,
B.Com., LL.B., ACS. Kolkata-700 092, India.
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice Mobile: 9830026425

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C clause 10(i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India  

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members 
Tata Metaliks Limited.

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Tata Metaliks Limited having 
CIN: L27310WB1990PLC050000 and having registered office at “Tata Centre”, 10th Floor, 43, J.L. Nehru Road, Kolkata-700071, (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Company”) produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at 
the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none 
of the Directors on the Board of the Company for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2021 has been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Director of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 (P V SUBRAMANIAN)
 Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice

 ACS No.: 4585
Place: Kolkata  CP. No.: 2077
Date: April 14, 2021. UDIN: A004585C000043096
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P. V. Subramanian 81/8, Regent Estate,
B.Com., LL.B., ACS. Kolkata-700 092, India.
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice Mobile: 9830026425

CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members 
Tata Metaliks Limited.

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Tata Metaliks Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 
on 31st March 2021 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“SEBI Listing Regulations”].

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has complied 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI Listing Regulations to the extent applicable to the 
Company for the year under report. 

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 (P V SUBRAMANIAN)
 Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice

 ACS No.: 4585
Place: Kolkata  CP. No.: 2077
Date: April 14, 2021. UDIN: A004585C000043118
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND 
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted the Tata Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director and the Whole-
time Directors. In addition to this, the Company has also adopted the Tata Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors. Both these Codes 
are available on the Company’s website at www.tatametaliks.com. 

I confirm that the Company has received a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct from the Senior Management Team and and 
the Members of the Board, for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management Team refers to the Members of the Management one level below the Managing 
Director as on March 31, 2021. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

 Sandeep Kumar
Place : Kolkata Managing Director
Date : April 14, 2021 DIN : 02139274
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ANNEXURE D

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION
Part – A - Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

[Read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

A)  Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for FY 
2020-21 and % increase in remuneration of Director/ KMP of the Company for the financial year:

Name of Directors
Ratio of remuneration to 
median remuneration of 

all employees

% increase in 
remuneration over 

previous year

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Koushik Chatterjee - -
Mr. Sanjiv Paul - -
Ms. Samita Shah - -
Independent Directors
Mr. Krishnava Dutt 3.09 44.44
Dr. Pingali Venugopal 3.29 10.90
Mr. Amit Ghosh 2.85 47.06
Dr. Rupali Basu 2.64 69.94
Executive Director / KMP
Mr. Sandeep Kumar 31.00 2.77
Mr. Subhra Sengupta 14.50 (13.27)
Mr. Sankar Bhattacharya (ceased to be a KMP effective April 14, 2021) 6.65 (11.53)
Mr. Avishek Ghosh (KMP effective April 14, 2021) NA NA

 Notes:

 1)  The Commission to Non-Executive Directors was recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on April 14, 
2021, subject to approval of the Members at the ensuing AGM to be held on August 02, 2021.

 2)  In line with the internal guidelines of the Company no payment is made towards commission to the Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company who are in full time employment with any other Tata Company and hence not stated. 

 3)   The ratio of remuneration to median remuneration is based on remuneration paid during the period April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021. 

 4)  Includes the Commission / bonus approved by the Board of Directors for the Managing Director on April 14, 2021 for FY 2020-21 
(which will be paid to him on conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of 2021).

B)  The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2020-21 : 1.07%
C)  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2021 : 1,263
D)  Comparison of average percentile increase in salary of employees other than the managerial personnel and the 

percentile increase in the managerial remuneration : 
  During the financial year 2020-21, the average percentage increase in salary of the Company’s employees, excluding the Key Managerial 

Personnel (“KMP”) was 1.07%. The percentage decrease in salary of KMPs during the same period (on actuals) was 4%.

  However, considering the Commission/ bonus approved by the Board of Directors for the Managing Director on April 14, 2021 for 
financial year 2020-21 ( which will be paid to him on conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of 2021), the increase in managerial 
remuneration for the year is 2.77%. The increase in managerial remuneration for the financial year 2020-21 is not comparable with 
financial year 2019-20 owing to there being no increase in the managerial remuneration for financial year 2019-20 in view of economic 
conditions impacted by COVID 19 pandemic wherein the Directors decided to moderate the executive remuneration for financial year 
2019-20 to express solidarity and conserve resources. 

E)  Affirmations: It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is as per the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Koushik Chatterjee

Place: Mumbai Chairman
Date: April 14, 2021 DIN: 00004989
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Part B : Statement of Disclosure Pursuant to Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013

[Read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the financial year 2020-21

Sl. 
No. Name Designation Remuneration

(` In crore)
Nature of 
employment

Qualification, experience 
and age

Date of 
commencement of 
employment

Previous employment and 
designation

1 Mr. Sandeep Kumar Managing 
Director 

1.63 Contractual Mining Engineer from 
ISM, Dhanbad, Post 
Graduate from IIFT; 
Exp.: 28 years;
Age: 53 years

July 01, 2017 EIC of Industrial By-Products 
Management Division Profit 
Centre of Tata Steel

2 Mr. Sharad Sharma EVP (Marketing 
& Sales)

1.26 Permanent B.Tech, 
Mech. Eng.; 
Exp.: 33 years,
Age: 55 years

February 01, 2017 TRL Krosaki Limited, EVP
(Sales & Marketing, ICT)

3 Mr. Rajesh Mishra EVP (Strategy 
& Corporate 
Services)

1.20 Permanent B. Tech, MBA; 
Exp.: 36 years;
Age: 57 years

November 01, 2012 Tata Metaliks DI Pipes Ltd, 
Managing Director

4 Mr. Debasish Mishra VP (Operations), 
PI Division

0.79 Permanent BE (Mechanical);
Exp.: 36 years;
Age: 60 years

November 11, 1999 DLF Power Limited;
Manager - Plant

5 Mr. Soumyajyoti Sarkar VP (Operations) 
– DI Division

0.77 Permanent Metallurgical Engineer,
Business Management
Graduate from XIM,
Bhubaneswar,
Exp.: 30 years;
Age: 54 years

October 24, 2017 Tata Consulting Engineers 
Ltd., Head of Delivery - Steel, 
Metals & Mining Business 
Unit

6 Dr. Bharat Bhushan GM (Project & 
Digitization)

0.77 Permanent M.E, PGDM, PhD
Exp. : 22 years
Age : 47 years

March 05, 2018 Vedanta Limited, Chief Digital 
Officer

7 Mr. Subhra Sengupta Chief Financial 
Officer

0.76 Permanent CA, Exec. Diploma in
Management; Exp.: 26
years; Age: 51 years

June 06, 2008 Tata Technologies Limited; 
Manager -Enterprise solution

8 Dr. Ratna Sinha VP(HRM) 0.68 Permanent MBA, PhD (FPM);
Exp.: 31 years;
Age: 60 years

July 01, 2013 Tata Steel Limited, Head 
Management Development

9 Mr. N. V. Ramanathan VP (Projects) 0.65 Permanent B.Tech (Electrical), MBA;
Exp.: 34 years;
Age: 58 years

February 02, 2006 Lanco Industries Limited; 
AGM - Projects

10 Mr. Sakti Sankar 
Bandopadhyay

GM (Coke & 
LSCM)

0.64 Permanent M.Tech (Metallurgy)
from NIT, JSR;
Exp.: 36 years;
Age: 56 years

June 01, 2016 Tata Steel Limited, Head 
Technical Services, Coke 
Oven

1)  Gross Remuneration comprises salary, allowances, monetary value of perquisites, commission to the Directors and the Company’s 
contribution to Provident and Superannuation Funds but excludes contribution to Gratuity Fund on the basis of actuarial valuation as 
separate figures are not available.

2) None of the above hold any equity shares of the Company.

3) None of the above employees is a relative of any Director or Manager of the Company.
On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Koushik Chatterjee

Place: Mumbai Chairman
Date: April 14, 2021 DIN: 00004989
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The Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis – 
 There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into by the Company, which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis–

S.N. Particulars Details

A Name(s) of the related party T S Global Procurement Co. Pte. 
Ltd. Singapore (‘TSGP’) 

Tata Steel Limited

B Nature of relationship TSGP is a subsidiary of Tata Steel 
Limited, which is the holding 

Company of Tata Metaliks Limited

Tata Steel Limited is the holding Company of Tata Metaliks Limited 

C Nature of contracts / arrangements/ 
transactions

Purchase of Coal/ Coke Purchase of Iron Ore Lump & Fines Purchase of HMC Coke

D Duration of the contracts / 
arrangements/ transactions

FY 2020-21

E Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any

Procurement of bulk coal/ coke 
to have consistent control over 

quality of the supplies for an 
aggregate amount of `350 crore 

during FY 2020-21

Procurement of bulk iron ore 
lumps and fines to have consistent 
control over quality of the supplies 
for an aggregate amount of `300 

crore during FY 2020-21

Procure bulk coke from HMC 
to have consistent control over 

quality of the Supplies for an 
aggregate amount of `450 crore 

during FY 2020-21
F Date(s) of approval by the Board, if 

any
The transactions were approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors at their Meetings held 
on March 26, 2020 and June 10, 2020 respectively and subsequently the Members at the AGM held on 

September 07, 2020
G Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Koushik Chatterjee
Place: Mumbai Chairman
Date: April 14, 2021  DIN: 00004989

ANNEXURE E

FORM NO. AOC-2
[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
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ANNEXURE F

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
[See Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Section A: General Information About the Company
1.  Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company: 

L27310WB1990PLC050000

2. Name of the Company: Tata Metaliks Limited

3.  Registered address: Tata Centre, 10th Floor, 43, J.L. Nehru 
Road, Kolkata-700071.

4.  Website: www.tatametaliks.com

5. E-mail id: investors@tatametaliks.co.in

6.  Financial Year reported: From April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021

7.  Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial 
activity code-wise):

NIC Code Description

24101 Pig Iron
24311 Ductile Iron Pipes

8.  List three key products/services that the Company 
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet): Pig Iron and 
Ductile Iron Pipes

9.  Total number of locations where business activity is 
undertaken by the Company

 (a)  Number of International Locations (Provide details of 
major 5) - Nil

 (b) Number of National Locations– 1

10.  Markets served by the Company – National and international 
projects for exports. 

Section B: Financial Details of the Company
1. Paid up Capital(INR): ₹31.58 crore

2. Total Turnover(INR): ₹1917 crore

3. Total profit after taxes(INR): ₹220 crore

4.  Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as 
percentage of profit after tax (%): Kindly refer Annexure B to 
the Board’s Report.

5.  List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been 
incurred: Kindly refer Annexure B to the Board’s Report.

Section C: Other Details
1.  Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/

Companies? No

2.  Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the 
BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate 
the number of such subsidiary company(s): Not applicable, 
since the Company does not have any subsidiaries. 

3.  Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors 
etc.) that the Company does business with participate in 
the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate 
the percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 
30-60%, more than 60%]: The Company engages with various 
stakeholder and undertakes several initiatives. Please refer to 
relevant sections under Stakeholder Engagement, Supplier of 
choice (SOC), Responsible Corporate Citizenship (RCC). 

Section D: BR Information
1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

 (a)  Details of the Director/Directors responsible for 
implementation of the BR policy/policies

SN Particulars Details

1. DIN 02139274
2. Name Mr. Sandeep Kumar
3. Designation Managing Director
4. Telephone 033 66134210
5. E-mail id md@tatametaliks.co.in

 (b) Details of the BR head
SN Particulars Details

1. DIN Number  
(if applicable)

Not applicable

2. Name Mr. Rajesh Mishra
3. Designation Executive Vice President 

(Strategy & Corporate Services)
4. Telephone number 033 66134200
5. E-mail id rajesh.mishra@tatametaliks.co.in
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2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies
  The National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVG-SEE) released by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has adopted nine areas of Business Responsibility. These are as follows:

P1 - Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.
P2 - Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle.
P3 - Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees.
P4 - Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable 

and marginalized.
P5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights.
P6 - Businesses should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment.
P7 - Businesses when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.
P8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.
P9 - Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N)

SN Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 Do you have a policy/policies for Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
2 Has the policy being formulated in consultation 

with the relevant stakeholders?
Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3 Does the policy conform to any national / 
international standards? If yes, specify? 

N N Y Y Y Y N Y Y

IMS policy covers all national, 
international standards, ILO, including 

ISO 9001, 14001, 45001 and SA 
8000:2014.

IMS policy covers 
all national, 

international 
standards, ILO, 
including ISO 
9001, 14001, 

45001 and SA 
8000:2014.

4 Has the policy being approved by the Board? If 
yes, has it been signed by MD / owner / CEO / 
appropriate Board Director?

N* N* N* N* N* N* N* N* N*

5 Does the Company have a specified committee 
of the Board / Director / Official to oversee the 
implementation of the policy?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

6 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? TCOC: https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/TCOC.pdf
Other policies: https://www.tatametaliks.com/corporate/policies.aspx

7 Has the policy been formally communicated to all 
relevant internal and external stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

8 Does the Company have in-house structure to 
implement the policy / policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

9 Does the Company have a grievance redressal 
mechanism related to the policy / policies to 
address the stakeholders’ grievances related to the 
policy/ policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

10 Has the Company carried out independent audit/ 
evaluation of the working of this policy by an 
internal or external agency?

Y
Internal

Y
Internal

Y
Internal

Y
Internal

Y
Internal

Y
Internal

Y
Internal

Y
Internal

Y
Internal
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b) If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)

SN Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 The Company has not understood the Principles
2 The Company is not at a stage where it finds itself in 

a position to formulate and implement the policies 
on specified principles

3 The Company does not have financial or manpower 
resources available for the task

4 It is planned to be done within next 6 months
5 It is planned to be done within the next 1 year
6 Any other reason (please specify) * Internal Policies are signed by the Managing Director

The Tata Code of Conduct (TCOC) is applicable to all Tata Group Companies. TCOC is 
signed by the Tata Group Chairman. Hence, it cannot be signed by Chairman/ Director of 
individual operating Tata Group Companies, where Group Chairman is not on the Board 
of Directors. All Directors and employees confirm compliance to the TCOC.

3. Governance related to BR
(a)  Indicate the frequency with which the Board of 

Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the 
BR performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 
months, Annually, More than 1 year:

  All aspects of BR are reviewed by Board on quarterly basis. 
Further, MD reviews major aspects of BR at his fortnightly APEX 
meetings with all functional heads.

(b)  Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability 
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How 
frequently it is published?

  The Company published its Sustainability Report for FY 2016-17. 
However, the Company has migrated to Integrated Reporting 
since FY 2017-18.

  Sustainability Report for FY 2016-17 is available at  
https://www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/sustainability/
tml-sustainability-report-fy-2016-17.pdf

  Integrated Reports of the Company since FY 2017-18 is available 
at: https://www.tatametaliks.com/investors/annual-reports.
aspx

Section E: Principle-Wise Performance
Principle 1
1.  Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption 

cover only the Company? No

2.  Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs/Others? Yes

3.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received 
in the past financial year and what percentage was 
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide 
details thereof.

Stakeholders Complaint Received 117
Stakeholders Complaint Resolved 116
Percentage of Stakeholders Complaint Resolved 99%

Principle 2
1.  List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has 

incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/
or opportunities.

 (a) Tata eFee Pig Iron

 (b) Tata Ductura Ductile Iron Pipe

2.  For each such product, provide the following details in 
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) 
per unit of product(optional):

 (a)  Reduction during sourcing/production/ distribution 
achieved since the previous year throughout the 
value chain?

   Details have been provided in the Integrated Report and 
Annexure I to the Board’s Report.

 (b)  Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) 
has been achieved since the previous year?

   Details are provided in the Integrated Report and 
Annexure I to the Board’s Report. 

3.  Does the Company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? If yes, 
what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably? 
Also, provide details thereof.

  Yes, please refer the Cost leadership and RCC section of the 
Integrated report for more details. 

4.  Has the Company taken any steps to procure goods 
and services from local & small producers, including 
communities surrounding their place of work? If yes, 
what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and 
capability of local and small vendors?

  Yes. The company in its constant endeavor to uplift its 
surrounding communities has a dedicated procurement team 
which collaborates with the CSR team under Entrepreneurship 
pillar of AA activities. Some of them are doing business with the 
Company for the last 10 years. 15 vendors from AA Community 
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are presently registered in the Company. Additionally, the 
Company also promotes formation of cooperatives with local 
people for service contracts. 

5.  Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle products 
and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of 
products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, 
provide details thereof.

  Yes, please refer RCC section of the Integrated report and 
annexure to the Boards’ report for more details. 

Principle 3
(All figures as on March 31, 2021)

1. Total number ofemployees: 1263

2.  Total number of employees hired on temporary/
contractual/casual basis: 3

3.  Number of permanent women employees: 32

4. Number of permanent employees with disabilities: 0

5.  Presence of employee association that is recognized by 
management. Yes

6.  Percentage of permanent employees who are members of 
recognized employee association: 60%

7.  Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to 
child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual 
harassment in the last financial year and pending, as on the 
end of the financial year: Yes. Details mentioned in Board’s 
Report. 

8.  Percentage of under mentioned employees who were 
given safety & skill up- gradation training in last year?

 (a) Permanent Employees: 100%

 (b) Permanent Women Employees: 100%

 (c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees: 100%

 (d) Employees with Disabilities: 100%

Principle 4
1.  Has the Company mapped its internal and external stake 

holders? Yes. Materiality assessment

2.  Out of the above, has the Company identified the 
disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders? 
Yes

3.  Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company 
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof.

  Yes, Please refer CSR Annual Report and RCC section of the 
Integrated Report for more details.

Principle 5
1.  Does the policy of the Company on human rights cover 

only the Company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others? Yes. It extends to all 
supply chain partners.

2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received in 
the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily 
resolved by the management? This has been mentioned 
above

Principle 6
1.  Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 

Company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others.

  Yes. The policies framed by the Company not only cover the 
employees but also extends to its supplier & customers too. 
The Company’s practices continue to ensure that the regulatory 
compliances are exceedingly met. The Company continues to 
work with the philosophy on social license to operate covering 
a larger stakeholder base. 

  In addition to the above, as an SA 8000 compliant organization, 
social responsibility and accountability are also extended to 
the Company’s partners, especially the suppliers which include 
environmental compliance. The Company also conducts 
periodic stakeholder engagements to assess improvement 
areas.

  Further, association with premier institutes/ bodies/agencies in 
the field of environment and sustainability helps the Company 
to re-align the practices to enhance value for its stakeholders. 
The Integrated Report covers the sustainable practice followed 
by the Company at large.

2.  Does the Company have strategies/ initiatives to address 
global environmental issues such as climate change, global 
warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web 
page etc.

  The IMS Policy of the Company covers the initiatives and the 
preventive measures taken by the Company to protect the 
environment. The regulatory compliances are adhered to for 
maintaining the same. The same can be accessed at https://
www.tatametaliks.com/static-files/pdf/policies/IMS-Policy.pdf

  The integrated report also highlights the initiatives taken by 
the Company under RCC pillar. Additionally, details can also be 
found in the website under ‘Environment initiatives’ at: https://
www.tatametaliks.com/sustainability/environment-initiatives.
aspx

3.  Does the Company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y/N
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  The environmental risks and issues are identified as per ISO 
14001:2015 requirements. Potential environmental risks are part of 
the risk registers and part of the Internal Audit scope which is review 
by the Risk Management Committee of the Board. Additionally, the 
integrated reporting framework covers review of material issues 
where environmental issues have also been identified.

4.  Does the Company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, 
in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any 
environmental compliance report is filed?

  Yes, there are projects related to Clean Development 
Mechanism (‘CDM’), although Company hasn’t filed for CER 
credits. Some of the initiatives under CDM are provided in the 
Annexure I to the Board’s Report. Environment compliance 
reports are available at: https://www.tatametaliks.com/
sustainability/environment-compliance.aspx

5.  Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on – 
clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc. 
Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

  The initiatives are same as above. The details of the same are 
available in the Integrated report under RCC and available in 
our website at at https://www.tatametaliks.com/sustainability/
environment-initiatives.aspx

6.  Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company within 
the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial 
year being reported?

 Yes

7.  Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/
SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as 
on end of Financial Year.

 Nil

Principle 7
1.  Is your Company a member of any trade and chamber or 

association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your 
business deals with:

 The Company is a member of the following bodies:
 (a) The Institute of Indian Foundrymen (IIF)
 (b) Bengal Chamber of Commerce and Industry (BCC&I)
 (c) Indian Chamber of Commerce (ICC)
 (d) Confederation of Indian Industry (CII)
 (e) Federation of Indian Export Organisations (FIEO)
 (f) Association of Indian Mini Blast Furnaces (AIM)
 (g) Indian Water Works Association (IWWA)
 (h) Indian Institute of Metals (IIM)
 (i) Federation of Indian Mineral Industries (FIMI)

2.  Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations 
for the advancement or improvement of public good?

  Yes. The Company participated/ had access to consultations 
on various matters relating to Governance and Administration, 
Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, Water, 

Sustainable Business Principles. The Company also used the 
Tata Code of Conduct as a guide for its actions in influencing 
public and regulatory policy.

Principle 8
1.  Does the Company have specified programmes/initiatives/

projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8? 

  Yes, please refer the RCC section of the Integrated report. 

2.  Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-
house team/own foundation/external NGO/Government 
structures/any other organization?

  Yes, The interventions by the Company are carried out in a 
structured manner. please refer CSR Annual Report And the RCC 
section of the Integrated report. 

3.  Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

  Yes. The Impact Assessment of CSR initiatives was conducted in 
2018 by an external agency. The assessment covered projects 
conducted under four thematic areas i.e. Education, Essential 
Enablers, Employability and Entrepreneurship in 11 project 
villages.

4.  What is your Company’s direct contribution to community 
development projects- Amount in INR and the details of 
the projects undertaken.

 Yes, please refer CSR annual report. 

5.  Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by the 
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

  Yes. Please refer to the RCC section of the Integrated report. 

Principle 9
1.  What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases 

are pending as on the end of financial year?

 Nil, 

2.  Does the Company display product information on the 
product label, over and above what is mandated as per 
local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks(additional information)

  The Company is not a retail product company, which has 
product labels on packets. The Company is a B2B organization. 
The product information as needed by BIS (Bureau of Indian 
Standard) is displayed on the product itself, in case of DI Pipes, 
and on the Invoices for Pig Iron.

3.  Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the 
Company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible 
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the 
last five years and pending as on end of financial year. If so, 
provide details thereof.

 Nil

4.  Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ 
consumer satisfaction trends?

  Yes. Please refer Integrated report, under the section of supplier 
of choice. 
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P. V. Subramanian 81/8, Regent Estate,
B.Com., LL.B., ACS. Kolkata-700 092, India.
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice Mobile: 9830026425

 Email: pvsm17@rediffmail.com

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

 [Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]  

For the Financial year ended 31st March, 2021.

To,
The Members,
Tata Metaliks Limited.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 
by Tata Metaliks Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 (“audit period”). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable 
basis of evaluating the corporate conduct / statutory compliances 
and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 
of secretarial audit, I hereby report that, in my opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes 
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:-

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company for the audit 
period according to the provisions of:

1.  The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made 
thereunder; 

2.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the 
rules made thereunder;

3.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws 
framed thereunder; 

4.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;

5.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

 (a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 (b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 (c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

 (d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015;

 (e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; and

 (f)  The Securities and Exchange of India (Depositories and 
Participants) Regulations, 2018.

6.  Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and general 
meetings respectively.

  Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines 
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company 
during the audit period: 

 (a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 

 (b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

 (c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of 
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

 (d)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 2018.

  As represented by the management, there are no Industry 
Specific Laws applicable to the Company. 

ANNEXURE G
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  I have relied on the representation made by the Company and 
its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Company 
for compliances under other laws applicable to the Company. 
The list of major head/groups of Acts, Laws and Regulations as 
applicable to the Company is given in Appendix-I. 

  During the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules Regulations, 
Guidelines, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that:

(i)  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors. There has been no change in the 
composition of the Board of Directors of the Company during 
the period under review.

(ii)  Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the 
meeting; and

(iii) Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 

  I further report that there are adequate systems and processes 
in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines, including 
general laws, labour laws, competition law and environment 
laws.

I further report that, during the period under report:- 

(a)  On September 25, 2020, the Company had issued and allotted 
to its Promoter, i.e. Tata Steel Limited (“TSL”), 34,92,500 Equity 
Shares at a price of `642/- per share on preferential basis upon 
conversion of 34,92,500 convertible warrants (‘Warrants”) held 
by TSL in the Company in the ratio of One Equity Share of face 
value of `10/- each for every Warrant of face value of `10/- 
each (issued at a price of `642/- per warrant, aggregating to 
`24,21,85,000/-); and 

(b)  The Board of Directors of the Company (“TML”), at its meeting 
held on November 13, 2020 had considered and approved a 
Scheme of Amalgamation of the Company with Tata Steel Long 
Products Limited (“TSLPL”) and the issue of 12 fully paid up 
equity shares of `10/- each of TSLPL (the Transferee Company) 
for every 10 fully paid up equity shares of `10/- each held in TML 
(the Transferor Company), subject to the receipt of requisite 
statutory and regulatory approvals and various matters 
consequentially or integrally connected therewith.

  This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is 
annexed as Appendix-II and forms an integral part of this 
report. 

(P V SUBRAMANIAN)
Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice

ACS No.: 4585
Place: Kolkata CP.No.: 2077
Date: April 14, 2021. UDIN: A004585C000043129
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APPENDIX-I
(To the Secretarial Audit Report to the Members of Tata Metaliks Limited for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021)

List of laws applicable to the Company and its 
manufacturing plant:
Registered Office:
Situated at:- ‘Tata Centre”, 10th Floor, 43, Chowringhee Road, 
Kolkata-700071. 

Manufacturing Plants:
Located at:- Kharagpur, West Bengal. 

Under the Major Group and Head:
a. Labour Laws:-
 The Factories Act, 1948.

 The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947     

 The Payment of Wages Act, 1936     

 The Minimum Wages Act, 1948     

 The Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948    

  The Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions 
Act, 1952  

 The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965     

 The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972    

 The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970  

 The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961     

  The Child and Adolescent Labour (Prohibition & Regulation) 
Act, 1986   

 The Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act, 1946  

 The Employees’ Compensation Act, 1923

 The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;     

  The Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of 
Vacancies) Act, 1959; & 

  The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

b. Environmental Laws:-
 Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974.   

 Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981.   

 Environment (Protection) Act, 1986     

 The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991.    

  Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary 
Movement) Rules, 2016. 

 (P V SUBRAMANIAN)
 Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice

 ACS No.: 4585
Place: Kolkata  CP. No.: 2077
Date: April 14, 2021. UDIN: A004585C000043129
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APPENDIX-II
(To the Secretarial Audit Report to the Members of Tata Metaliks Limited for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021)

To,
The Members,
Tata Metaliks Limited.

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31/03/2021 of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2.  I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts reflected on secretarial records. I 
believe that the processes and practices I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3.  I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the Company. 

4.  Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening 
of events etc. 

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the responsibility of the 
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6.  The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

7.  Due to prevailing circumstances of covid-19 pandemic, the audit was conducted by distance mode and my report is based on 
verification of Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed, documents and other records furnished by the 
Company electronically and also the information provided by Company and its officers by audio and visual means.

 (P V SUBRAMANIAN)
 Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice

 ACS No.: 4585
Place: Kolkata  CP. No.: 2077
Date: April 14, 2021. UDIN: A004585C000043129
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Amount outstanding as on March 31, 2021

(₹ crore)

Particulars Amount

Loans given 150
Guarantees given -
Investments made -

Loans, Guarantees given or Investments made during the Financial Year 2020-21

 (₹ crore)

Name of the Entity Relation Amount Particulars of Loan, Guarantees 
given or Investments made

Purpose for which the loans, guarantees and 
investments are proposed to be utilized

Tata Steel Downstream 
Products Limited

Related party and subsidiary 
of Holding Company

150 Loan Working capital

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Koushik Chatterjee

Place: Mumbai  Chairman
Date: April 14, 2021  DIN: 00004989

ANNEXURE H

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
[Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013]
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(A) Conservation of Energy
(i) Steps taken on conservation of energy and its impact:
 Electrical energy saving
 a)  Installation of VVF drives in CW pump & sealing blower in PCI 

& slag granulation pump of MBF - Impact – Potential Energy 
saving of 219625 kWh/year with a benefit of `18L/year

 b)  Synchronization of CPP-2 & 3 with grid and increase 
captive generation to reduce grid import & power cost – 
Impact – Extra captive power generation of 3639591 kWh/
year with a benefit of `2.97 crore/year

 c)  4 nos of harmonic filters installation at secondary coils of 
2 nos of induction furnaces (1/F) transformers – benefit of 
`71 lakhs in 3 months

 d)  25 nos of VVFD installation at CCM-1,2,3,4 & 5 motors for 
energy saving – benefit of `31 lakhs/year

 e)  75 KW VFD installation in CA fan motor of annealing 
furnace (A/F) to reduce power consumption – benefit of 
`15 lakhs/year

 f)  Replacement of 150 nos. of 250 W metal halide lamps 
with 75 nos. of 250 W LED lights to reduce lighting load 
– Impact – Energy saving – 157500 kWh with a benefit of 
`13 lakhs/year

 g)  Installation of HT VVFDs in sinter main ID, tail ID & PCI 
ID fans for energy saving, better operational control & 
higher equipment life ( under commissioning) – Impact – 
potential energy saving of 2653274 kWh/yr with a benefit 
of `2.4 crore/year

 Liquid Fuel saving
 a)  Fuel conservators installation in mobile equipment – Fuel 

saving 4-8%

 b)  HSD consumption reduction in CPP 1 & 2 by burner 
cleaning from outside control valve installation, 
simultaneous back charging of CPP1 & 2 from grid & 
better monitoring – Impact – HSD saving of 43 KL/year 
with a benefit of `27 lakhs/year

 c)  Elimination of multiple coke handling and charging 
directly in ground hopper for GSA Coke – Impact – savings 
due to HSD & coke moisture reduction with a benefit of 
`36 lakhs/year

  Solid fuel (coke & coal) saving; thermal energy efficiency 
improvement

 a)  Increase in PCI usage & oxygen enrichment in MBFs to 
reduce carbon rate & cost – benefit of `23.71 crore/year

 b)  Savings on account of reduction in Net Fuel Rate in MBFs – 
benefit of `50.13 crore/year

 c)  Optimizing Coal blend (CFT) through lower usage of HCC 
– benefit of `1.93 crore/year

 d)  In-house preheating of hot blast stoves during shutdown 
– benefit of `12 lakhs/year. 

(ii)  Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 
sources of Energy: 

 a)  Use of BFG fired boiler to generate power in CPP 1 & 2 – 
benefit – power generation of 6.7 MW

 b)  Use of waste heat of coke oven gas for power generation 
through WHRB – benefit power generation of 25 MW

 c)  Installation of 18 kWp on grid roof top solar power system 
at truck parking area – Impact – Total power generation of 
17300 kWh/yr with a benefit of `1.5 lakhs/year

 d)  Installation of 10 kWp solar power system at guest house 
roof top – Impact – Solar power generation 6461 kWh/yr 
with a benefit of `0.5 lakhs/year

 e)  Installation of grid connected battery less 1 MW 
solar power plant at finishing line 1,2 & 3 ( under 
commissioning) – Total generation potential 22923900 
kWh/yr with a benefit of `49.3 lakhs/year

 f)  Installation of 1000 LPD roof top solar heater in central 
canteen to reduce HSD consumption – Impact – potential 
LPG saving of 72 cylinders/day with a benefit of `1 l/year

ANNEXURE I

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder
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(i) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: 

Particulars  ₹ crore

a) LT VVFDs installation in pumps & blowers of PCI & MBFs 0.33
b) HT VVFDs in sinter plant & PCI 2.00
c) CPP synchronization with grid, energy management system & capacitor bank installation 6.20
d) Harmonic filter installation in I/F 0.48
e) 75 KW VFD installation in A/F 0.15
f ) VVFD installed at CCM – 1,2,3,4, & 5 0.21
g) Installation of 15 MW waste heat recovery power plant (CPP4) 87.00
h) 18 kWp on grid roof top solar power system at truck parking 0.07
i) Installation of grid connected battery less 1 MW solar power plant (under commissioning) on BOOT basis 0.02
j) 1000 LPD roof top solar heater in central canteen 0.06

(B) Technology Absorption
1 Efforts made towards technology absorption Pulverized Coal Injection (PCI) in MBFs leading to replacing high cost coke 

by coal
2 The benefits derived such as product improvement, cost reduction, 

product development or import substitution
Mechanized system for Ferro-silicon addition

3 In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years 
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)

PCI for replacement of coke by coal (supplied by Ande, China)
Pig casting machine capacity up gradation with new mould design 
(supplied by Shelin, China)The details of technology imported 

a) The year of import 2018
b) Whether the technology been fully absorbed Yes
c)  If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, 

and the reason thereof;
N.A

4 The expenditure incurred on Research and Development The following process change took place in the year:
a) Increased coal injection
b) Increased oxygen enrichment

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
(₹ lakhs)

FY 2020-21 FY2019-20

Foreign exchange earnings 5025.19 6464.71
Value of direct imports (C.I.F. Value) 29183.59 27358.75
Expenditure in foreign currency 1795.79 1339.81

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Koushik Chatterjee

Place: Mumbai  Chairman
Date: April 14, 2021  DIN: 00004989
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Metaliks Limited 

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
1.  We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 

Tata Metaliks Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement 
of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

2.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2021, and total comprehensive 
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion
3.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
4.  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Appropriateness of carrying amount of deferred tax assets relating to 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit

(Refer Note 3 to the financial statements – Use of estimates and critical 
accounting judgements – Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets.)

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on the unutilised tax 
credits representing Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT), in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 115JB of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and related rules, 
paid on the book profit in the years in which the Company did not have 
normal taxable profits. The carrying amount of MAT Credit, included under 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) is ` 7015.38 lakhs as at the balance sheet date.

The balance of MAT Credit assets is significant to the financial statements. 
Under the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 12, these assets require 
review at each reporting period.

This has been determined as a key audit matter as the

assessment of the appropriateness of the carrying amount of deferred 
tax asset relating to MAT involves significant management judgement in 
assessing the availability of future taxable profits to offset the accumulated 
MAT credits, assessment of assumptions (internal / external factors including 
demand and pricing) underlying the future profit projections to establish 
reasonable certainty around utilization of the asset.

Our audit procedures included the following:

  Understood and evaluated the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of Company’s controls relating to taxation and the 
assessment of carrying amount of deferred tax assets;

  Reviewed the Company’s accounting policy in respect of recognizing 
deferred tax assets;

  Involved auditor’s experts to evaluate the availability of the tax credit 
in keeping with the applicable provision of Income tax Act / Rules;

  Assessed the calculations and assumptions supporting the carrying 
amount of the asset;

  Evaluated the reasonableness of the assumptions underlying 
management’s profit projections in the light of the relevant 
economic, internal and external factors;

  Assessed the reasonableness of historical accuracy of the Company’s 
projections by comparing the projections used in the prior year 
model with actual performance in the current year;

  Assessed the sensitivity analysis applied by the Company and 
evaluated if any change in the assumptions will lead to any material 
change in carrying amount;

  Evaluated the adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures made in 
the financial statements;

Based on our above procedures performed, we considered the carrying 
amount of deferred tax assets relating to MAT credit to be reasonable.
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Other Information
5.  The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 

information. The other information comprises the information 
in the Integrated Report and the Board’s Report along with 
Annexures to the Board’s Report included in the Company’s 
Annual Report (titled as ‘Tata Metaliks Integrated Report & 
Annual Accounts 2020-21’) but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

  Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

  In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact.

 We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged 
with governance for the financial statements
6.  The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

7.  In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements
8.  Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

9.  As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances; under Section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.
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10.  We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

11.  We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

12.  From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
13.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 

(“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

14. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

 (c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement 
of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

 (d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply 
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act.

 (e)  On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors, taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act.

 (f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

 (g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

  i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements – Refer Note 28 to the financial 
statements;

  ii.  The Company has long-term contracts and 
derivative contracts as at March 31, 2021 for which 
there were no material foreseeable losses.

  iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 
31, 2021.

  iv.  The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified 
Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the 
year ended March 31, 2021.

15.  The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration 
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009 
Chartered Accountants

Pinaki Chowdhury 
Partner
Membership Number: 057572
UDIN: 21057572AAAAAJ9368

Kolkata
April 14, 2021
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
1.  We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements of Tata Metaliks Limited (“the Company”) 
as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls
2.  The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and 
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to financial statements
6.  A company’s internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 14 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Metaliks Limited on the 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to financial statements
7.  Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion
8.  In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 

adequate internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009 
Chartered Accountants

Pinaki Chowdhury 
Partner
Membership Number: 057572

Kolkata
April 14, 2021
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i. (a)  The Company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of 
fixed assets.

 (b)  The fixed assets are physically verified by the 
Management according to a phased programme 
designed to cover all the items over a period of three years 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant 
to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been 
physically verified by the Management during the year 
and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such 
verification.

 (c)  The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in 
Note 4A on Property, Plant and Equipment and Note 4C 
on Right-of-use assets to the financial statements, are held 
in the name of the Company.

ii.  The physical verification of inventory (excluding stocks with 
third parties) have been conducted at reasonable intervals by 
the Management during the year. In respect of inventory lying 
with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed 
by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material.

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, 
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of 
the Act except unsecured loans to one company covered in the 
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

 (a)  In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions 
under which such loans were granted are not prejudicial 
to the Company’s interest.

 (b)  In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been 
stipulated. Principal amount of one loan that was due 
for repayment during the year have been rolled over/ 
renewed as fresh loan, the principal amount of the other 
loan has not fallen due for repayment yet and party is 
regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

 (c)  In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which 
is overdue for more than ninety days.

iv.  In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
in respect of the loans and investments made, and guarantees 
and security provided by it, as applicable.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public 
within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and 
the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi.  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, 
the Company is required to maintain cost records as specified 
under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We 
have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, 
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been 
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether 
they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a)  According to the information and explanations given to 
us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues, including provident fund (refer remark 
below), employees’ state insurance, sales tax, income 
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities. Also refer note 41 to the financial statements 
regarding management’s assessment on certain matters 
relating to provident fund.

   Further, for the months April 2020 and May 2020, the 
Company has paid Goods and Service Tax and filed GSTR-
3B after the due date but within the timelines allowed by 
Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs under the 
notification number 31/2020 dated 3rd April, 2020 and 
notification number 36/2020 dated 3rd April, 2020 and on 
fulfilment of conditions specified therein.

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Metaliks Limited on the 
financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the particulars of dues 
of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and goods and service tax as at March 31, 2021 
which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount (` in 
Lakhs)

Period to which the 
amount relates Forum where Dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 4,195.66 2009-10, 2010-11, 2012-
13, 2013-14, 2015-16, 
2016-17 & 2017-18

Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)

West Bengal
Sales tax Act, 1994

Sales Tax 94.49 2006-07 West Bengal Commercial Tax Appellate & 
Revision Board

Value Added Tax Act, 2005 Value Added Tax 3.13 2017-18 Additional Commissioner of Sales Tax
Value Added Tax Act, 2005 Value Added Tax 2361.29 2015-16 & 2016-17 West Bengal Commercial Tax Appellate & 

Revision Board
Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 GST 10.23 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 605.57 2007-08, 2012-13 & 

2013-14
Customs Excise and Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 92.25 2010-11 to 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 87.81 2005-06 to 2010-11 Additional Commissioner
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 232.86 Till 30.06.2017 High Court -Calcutta
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 5349.30 2005-06 to 2011-12 Customs Excise and Service Tax Appellate 

Tribunal
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 35.81 2010-11 Joint Commissioner
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 19.45 2010-11, 2011-12, 2016-

17 and 2017-18
Assistant Commissioner

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 63.63 2014-15 & 2016-17 Additional Commissioner
Customs Act, 1932 Custom Duty 12.00 2011-12 to 2015-16 Customs Excise and Service Tax Appellate 

Tribunal

viii.  According to the records of the Company examined by us and 
the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to 
any financial institution or bank or Government or dues to 
debenture holders, as applicable, as at the balance sheet date.

ix.  In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the moneys raised by way of term 
loans have been applied on an overall basis, for the purposes 
for which they were obtained. The Company has not raised any 
moneys by way of initial public offer and further public offer 
(including debt instruments).

x.  During the course of our examination of the books and records 
of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither 
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company 
or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or 
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any 
such case by the Management.

xi.  The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration 
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Also 
refer paragraph 15 of our main audit report.

xii.  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 
2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  The Company has entered into transactions with related parties 
in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of 
the Act. The details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv.  The Company has made a preferential allotment of equity 
shares and convertible warrants during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2019, in compliance with the requirements of Section 
42 of the Act. Pursuant to the above, during the year, the 
Company has made allotment of equity shares on conversion 
of the aforesaid convertible warrants, which (along with ` 0.98 
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lakhs unutilized till March 31, 2020 out of the funds raised in 
aforesaid financial year ended March 31, 2019), have been 
utilized for the purposes for which funds were raised [towards 
funding expansion project and repayment of debt (which as 
represented by the Board is towards strengthening the Balance 
Sheet)]. The Company has not made any other preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year under audit.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions 
with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the 

provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009 
Chartered Accountants

Pinaki Chowdhury 
Partner
Membership Number: 057572

Kolkata
April 14, 2021
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